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Kforce Inc. (NASDAQ: KFRC) is a fullservice, specialty staffing Firm providing flexible and permanent staffing solutions for organ-
izations and career management for individuals in the specialty skill areas of finance and accounting (FA), technology (Tech),
health and life sciences (HLS) and government services [KGH).

Kforce employs more than 2,000 staffing specialists operating in 43 markets. By combining four decades of customer relationships
built on persanal respect with the most advanced technology, Kforce is a feader in specialty staffing—a business line that challenges
the industry. Everyday, through thousands of one-on-one contacts, Kforce is gaining the trust of its clients and is making the right
match between organizations and skilled knowledge waorkers,
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HEALTH AND LIFE SCIENCES

The Kforce Health and
Life Sciences division
is comprised of the
HealthCare, Clinical
Research and
Scientific business
units. The HealthCare
business unit offers
experienced candidates
for sentor hogpital
management, health information manage-
ment prafessionals, quatified registered nurses
and other clinical positions. The Clinical
Research husiness unit specializes in perma-
nent and contract placement services in the
drug development area of pharmaceutical
research. Placements within our Scientific
business unit range from laboratory experts
to scientists in the pharmaceutical, biotech-
nology, food and beverage, chemicat, aero-
space, polymer coatings, textile, agriculture
and medical devices industries.

GDVEHNMENT AND GLOBAL SOLUTIONS
Kforce Government
Holdings, Inc. incorpo-
rates two distinet sub-
sidiaries—Kforce
Government Solutions,
Inc. [KGS) and Kforce
Global Solutions, Inc.
(Globall. KGS provides
innovative technical
and finange and
accounting solutions to more than 50 unique
agencies and departments within the Federal
government. The indepth operational knowledge
and understanding of federal agencies, has
resulted in a comprehensive portfolio of tech-
nology. finance & accounting, and consulting
solutions designed to guide agencies through
complex challenges. Kforce Global Solutions
specializes in the provision of outsourced busi-
ness Process Services to companies in a wide
range of industries.

FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING STAFFING
At Kforce, we're proud
to be able to provide
clients with the most
qualified finance and
accounting profession-
als. We work with indi-
viduals at every level in
corporate finance and
taxation, financial analy-
sis and reporting,
budget preparation and analysis, cost analysis,
audit services, and much more. Kforce also
pravides CFOs, controllers, financial analysts,
public accountants, and other high-level finan-
cial professionals on a contract basis, as well
as for direct hire.

TECHNDLDGY

From programmers
and network opera-
tors to systems ana-
lysts and CIOs, Kfarce
has an exclusive data-
base that is packed
with the most qualified
candidates to handle
system upgrades,
training, installation,
implementation, and development. Kiorce
can provide information technology con-
sultants for project work, assist in helping
clients find direct hire personnel, or partner
with technology departments to get the job
done right. Kforce also specializes in more
sophisticated areas such as systems,/appli-
cations programmers, systems analysts,
and networking technicians.

KFORCE
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revenues and earnings. Total revenues of $3938.4 milion in 2006 rep-
resent a 17% increase gver 2005 revenues. In 2008, the Firm posted
four straight reoord revenue quarters We also ach|eved ail ttr‘ne high
revenue |n EPS for the full year of ECDE And I'm even more pleased to

‘report that we believe, 2007 w:” be an even better year We believe

the knowledge economy rernalne strong with bath secular and cyclical
drivers fueling excelient growth prospeota College—educated unernploy

; ment remalns at near record lows with no reluef in 5|ght -The premium -

far top t;alent WII] I|kely increase for the foreseeable future.

£ ‘\
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JIn 2006, we' completed and integrated twa acguisitions, PCCI Hold-

ings; fnc in the first quarter and Bradson Corporation in the fourth
quarter The PCCI acquisition enhanced aur technology stafﬂng plat-
form in thé MNortheast. »and brought us a prlme federal government
platform in technalogy, from which we plan to take advantage of the
substantial investrments in homeland security and the changing federal
workforce demographics. Bradson brought us a prime federal gavern-
ment platform in finance and aooounting from which'we plan to take
advantage of the herghtened focus™on impraving financial controls

and efficiency within the federal government Wefare very pleased

" that we have been able to produce atrong results while mtegratmg

o EICQUISItIDnS durmg the year. . P

] , L '. ' ;
~ . | . f o <!

Aleo in 2006, we moved closer to completmg our back office technology
platform a|med at mcreaalng operatlng efficiency and dellvermg excep-

-

* tional serwce to our clients. Qur management tearm mattrad and we
added strong leaders in our remaining key posxtlons eupported by a sub-
stantial |rwe5tment in leadership training. We'invested heavily in bulldlng
aur aseocnate ranks putting fesources |n place supported by subetantlal
tralnlng to enhance orgamc growth as their produotlwty improves. We
belleve the table is now substantially set for 2007 and 2008, aswe look
to increase Dperat:ng leverage through pnofltable revenue growth. Our
goal i |s to sur‘pass &1 billion in revenue for the first trme it Firm hratory
Qur \nsmn is Yo be the staffing Firm most respected by those we serve.

A key aspect of our vision is bundlng a Firm that delivers austalnable ‘

and oo.115|stent revenue and ‘earnings performance. - ;
/ ) | C - s -

Ve are especially proud that in 2006 alt of our business segments con-
tributed to our{drowth led By a 23% intrease in our technology seg*
ment, which comprlsed approximatety half of.our total revenves. in th|5
knowtedge economy where ak|IIed waorkers are at a prerruurn we beheve
the demand for technology staffing services wili continue to grow and
that we are well-posmor\ed to take advantage of this increasing demand,
Another trend”that has contrihuted to both revenue and earnings
growth in 2006 was the growth of our highly proﬁtable search business.
We're pleased with the per‘formance of this group Search revenues for

the year of $70.9 r)nllllon represents 29.1% annual growth.
t ' \

TO OUR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS, CLIENTS AND EMPLOYEES:

- A N .
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After 27 years at Kfarce. we are pleased Lo report that 2006 was
\ the best year in ur history. The Firm hit alitime high records in

A

The improving gross margins that the Firm experienced in 2008, cou-
«~ pled with careful management of controllable expenses, have allowed °
the Firm to rnaLe significant investments in building sales and delivery
capability, while-notlaignificantly impacting earnings. Sales associate
headcount increased over 30% for the year. And accordingly, the Firm
made significant investments in leadership and sales training: We
expect 2007 to be a year of transition from aggressive talent acqui-
sition to rmore of a focus on productivity, which should further

enhance our earnings capability. -

y A - o

We are especially exsited about the Qpportunities in the technology and
finance and accounting sectors in the government space, and believe
: that the government. vertical allows us to leverage our nationwide
recruiting and sales capability as the demand far services to the govern-
ment tncreaees This new segment may also add stahility to our revenue /
stream as a result of the long-térm contract nature of the buelness. \

And finally, we will substantially complete the signiﬁcant investments in ’
new technology for our Firm-by the fall. Over the last three years, we
“have installed & new front-end system and a long fist of |nfraetructure

applications, including electronic client approval, Peop!eSoft H,Fl. and |~

financial system upgrades, pay bill time and labor, and a data tenter
upgrade. These world-class systems will provide our, clients and assn-
ciates with the finest tools, and, we believe, allow us to reduce SGSA *°
through efficiency gains.

We continue to targiat operating margins of 10% of revenue in this’
cycle. We have often talked sbout aur three-year plan to optimize earnlnge
The first year of our three—year ptan, 2006. was a great success and bet-
ter than we expected. We believe we have a foundation for more success

in 2007 and 2008, We want ta thank our employees and consuttants for
once again denﬁonetratjng in 2006 that Great People = Great Results.

David L. Ddnkel . ;
Chafrman and Chief Executive Offfcer

Wllham L. Sander‘s
President
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The informaticn set forth below is not necessanly indicative of the results of future operations and should be read in conjunction wn:h Kforte's

. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

.

}

;

Consolidated Flnanmal Staternents and the related notes thereto mcorparated mto thls Annual Report.

.~

‘ . ) S /
Years Ended December 31, VT T - 2006 2008, 2004 2003 2002’
 (In thousands, except per;s‘hé‘re data) : _— T -

. p * , -~ "~
Statement of Operations Dat:a . S _— - N
Net service revenues - N N $938,448 $B02,265,  $661451 . $495585 - $513,547
Direct costs of services ’ S 612,349 . 542276 457567 341617 ‘345,585

CGrossprofit - T - ' 326,099 559989 203884 . 153968 167962
Selling, general and admlnlstratlve expenses - “~ 257,187 212,724 , 185,488 142,915 \’ISB,«?SB
_ Depreciation and amortization N 11,5582 8,283. 1. 5221 4371 .~ 8629 @
" Other expense, net <3 / . 4,354 1,816 ’ 1701 1214 ¢ 3.206.
* Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative . » ' o .
effect of change in accounting principle - 53,008 37166 11474 5468 (13.108)
» Provision [benefit) for income taxes . ‘ ~ 20,487 14,845 [13,537) » 350 102
Net income (lnss) before cumulative effect ' - : !
of change in_accounting pr‘incif)!e o - 32,519, 22,321 5011 + 5118 {13 208)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — 7 - — - [33 823]
Netincome floss) .~ ' v 1 ¢ $ 32,518 % 22321 25011  $ 5118 - _$ (47031
Earnings (loss] per share before cumulative 7 ) . ' . ) -
effect of change in accounting principle—basic « -, $0.81 - $0.58 $0.73 $017 ~ $(0.42)
Earnings (toss) per share—basic : o $0.81 L$0.58 $0.73° $017 $(1.49)
Weighted average shar*esloutstandfng—has{c 40,189 ‘38527 34,125 30514 ~ , 31577
Earnings (loss) per share hefore cumulative ) A ; Co . ks
effect of Change in accounting prlnmpie—dlluted $0.77. 5085 | " $0B9 | B06 $(0.42) i
. Earnings (loss) per share—dituted : '  $0.77 $0.55 " $089 $016 ${1.49) -
Weighted average sharas nu.tstanding%ﬂuted A s 42,012 40618 36091 L 31,231 31,677

o : " 2 - Lo
December-31; ‘ / EDQG ‘2005 2004 2003 . . =002
Balance Sheet Data: i . R B o
Wor‘kmg capital , ) $ 64,425 , § 92539 / $24828 -§ 40784 . $ 32128

Total assets N v H $442,618 | $324,746  $273195 $160,317  $151435
' Total lang-term debt R $ 78,519~ & 38167 § 1727 $ 22000 $22000
_Stockholders’ equity \ N $261,925 $210702 . $170769 $ 91405 ' $ 84848 Z
. Al . . ~ s P ~ N .
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The following graph is a cnmpamson of the cumulative tatal returns for Kforce comimon stuck as compared with the cumulative total return fer
the Nasdag Stock Market [U.S.] Index and the average performance of a group consisting of our peer corporations on a fine-of-business basis. The
cumulative return was computed by dividing the difference between the price of Kforce common stock at the end and the beglnnmg of the meas-
urement pericd, [December 31, 2001 to December 29, 2006) by the price of Kforce common stock at the heginning of the measuremeant period.

- The.total return calculatmns are based upon an assumed $100 investment on December 31, 2001 and all returns are weighted based on market
capltallzatlon.\'l'he COMparisons in the graph below are: based on historical data and are not intended to forecast the possible future perfeemance

of Kforce common stock. ©
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STOCK PRICE PERFORMANCE
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MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND
RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock trades on The NASDAQ Global Sefect Market, under the symbol “KFRC.” The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated,
the range of high and low closing sale prices for our common stock, as reported on The NASDAQ Glabal Select Market. . These prices represent,

inter-deater quotations without retail markups, markdowns or commissions and rmay not represent actual transactions.

i ‘ ' - ~

- " N ’ . \ -
' T ! High ) Low
Calendar Year 2005: : | ' ’
' First Quarter _ $11.71 . $1006
Second Quarter © $1103 P $ 6.98
Third Quartar $11.36 - %8039
Fourth Quarter - : oL o o $12.71 '$ 978
" Calendar Year 2006: - : ' ) L K
First Guarter’ v N - $13.18 $11.28 "
Second Quarter ‘ T -’ $16.20 $12.74
Third Quarter $15.49 $10.10

Fourth Quarter . Yo $14.97 - $12.07

’
3

On March 2, 2007, there were approximately 239 holders of record af our commaon stock. On March 2, 2007, the last reported sale pmce of
. our common stock on The NASDAQ Global Select Market was $13.03 per share. (TO BE UPDATED)

-~

- I -

QUANTITATIVE AND GUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK A
Kfarce is exposed to a variety of risks, including changes in interest rates on borrowings. As of December 31, 2006, Kforce is exposed to
changes in interest rates on the $86.4 million of debt. Kforce does not engage in trading market risk sensitive instruments far speculative purposes.
-+ Kforce believes that effects on it of changes in interest rates are limited, and a 1% change in rates would have an annual effect of approximately
$864,000 on our interest expense.

5
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. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
* CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (“MD&A”)

Tl"llS MD&A should be read in connectian with the Selected Finan- '
|
claI Data |nc|uded in this Annual Report, lncludmg the Notes to the

{
\

Consolldat.ed Fmanmal Sl:atements referred to herein as "F|nanC|aI
Statements Also certain references to partlcular information in the
Financial Statements are made to asmst readers. .

I -

OVERVIEW / - S L
This overview is intended t.o\assist readers in better understanding
this MOGA.. - ;o 'y
Voo [ N ' ;S .
Who We Are ' IO : ‘

We are a national s)r‘ovider of profession/al and;technical speciaity
st:afflng ser‘wces At December 31, 2006, we operated 74 field offices
coverlng 43 markets in 50 states and the District of Columbia wn:hln
the United States. We als6 havé a field office iri.the Philippinres as a

result of our dffshore outsourcing solutions. VWe pravide our clients

' staf‘fi\ng ser\vices through four busifiess segments: Technalogy {"Tech”),

£y

Finance and Accounting [“FA7), Health and Life Sciences (*HLS") and-

¥
'Government Substantlalfy all Tech and FA services are sold and dellv—

ered through our field ofﬁces The HLS segment |ncludes aur Cllnlcal

Research, Scientific, Healthcare-Nursmg " Nur‘smg '} and Health Infor-

mation Management [ “HIn™) specualtles The sales and delivery func-

tions of substantial portlons of HLS,. particularly Clinical Research and

HIM, are concentrated in our headquarters. Substantially all Govern-
ment services are sold and delivered through prime contracts with the ,
Federal government by- field offices Iocated in the Washmghon D.C, met-
ropollt‘.an area. Dur headquarters pro\ndes support services to our field
off:ces in-areas such as human resources, nationwide recruiting,-train-
ing, rnarkemng and natlonal sales |n1t|at|ves in addition to the traditional
"back office” support services like payrall, billing, accounting, legal and

tax which are highly centralized. .

\
Kforce is focused-on prowdmg “staffing solutaons ‘services to, our
clients, Qur stafﬁng ser\nces |nclude Flexible Sr.af'ﬂng Ser\noes ( Flex ]

and Search Services [ Search . ' ' , X
Bl ! : ™ \
Flex ' -~ y 1 ' \ -

Th/rough Flex..we provide clients with qualified individuals {"consul-

. tants ona r.ernporfa/ry beists with the appropriate skills and experience,

when it is determined it is "the right match.” To be successful, our
employees [‘associates”) endeavor to [1) understand the clients’ needs,
(2] determine and understand the capatulltles of the consultants being
recrumed and [3] deliver and manage the clcent-consull:ant relationship
to the samsfactlon of both the clients and the consultants. Typically, the
better job Kforce and our consultants do, the longer the as&ngnments
last and the more often those chents turn to Kforce for additional needs.

_The Flex business cornprlsed BE 4% of our revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2006. Flex revenues are driven by hours billed
and bllllng rates. Flex gross proﬁt is determlned | by deductlng consultant
pay benefits and other related costs from Flex revenues. Fiex associate

‘commissions, related taxes and other compensation and benefits as
\ AN - o

N, .l. N . : A
il ‘

.our clients” human capital needs,

well as ﬁeld management oompensatlon are included in 5e|||ng General
- and Adrnlnlstr‘atlve expenses ("SG&A) along with admlnlst‘.ratlve and
corporate compensation. The Flex business model involves attemptlng
to maximize consultant hours and billing rates, while optimizing oonsult.—
ant pay rates and benefit costs and commissions and other compensa-
tion and benefits for associates, as well as minimizing the other
aperating costs necessary ta effectively support such activities. L
Search Y o : L
The Search business is a smaller, yet important part of cur business
that involves Iocat;ung permanent employees for our clients. We prima-
, rily perform searches on a contingency basis, with fees being earned ,

only i/ personnel are hired by our clients. Fees are typically structured /

asa percentage of the placed individual's firstyear annual compensa-
tion. We' recruit permanent employees from our Flex cansultant popu-

_ lation, from the ]Ob ‘boards, and from candidates we identify who are -

currently employed and not actively seeking another position. Some-
times consultants initially work with clients on a Flex basis and thent
later are converted inta permanent employees, for which we /also
receive Search fees. There can be no assuranceé or expectation that
Search revenues wiI‘I increase if economic conditicns ir_nprlove, as has
been the case in previous economic cycles. Clients and recruits are
often targets for both Flex and Search services, and this commaon focus
contributes ta our objective .of providing integrated solutions for all of

-

.

. Search révenues are driven by placements made and the fees billed.
There are no consultant payroll costs associated with the placement
and thus all search revenue generally increases gross profn: by a like

amounr. Search assomate comm:ssmns CDITlpEﬂSEItIOn and bBﬂefltS N /

{are also |nc|uded in SG&A. Search revenues comprised 7.6% of revenue
in20D8. T - ¢ -

. l.

‘\\,r

A ' .
Our, Industry '

‘We serve Fortune 1000 companies, as well as small and mid-size o

local and regional companies, with our largest ten clients representing

approximately 19% cf revenues for the year ended December 31,
20086. The specialty st‘.afﬂng industry is made up of thousands of com-

panies, most of which are small loca! firms providing a limited sefvice ;

offering to a small local client base. We believe Kforce is one of the ten
largest specialty-staffing firms in the United States, that the ten firms:
combined have a market share of less than 23% of the appticable mar-
ket and that no single firm has larger than an approximate 4% market.
share, Competition in a particular market can come from many.different
companies, either large or small. We believe, ho\lvever, that our'geo-
graphic presence, diversified service offerings within our core busk-

” nesses, and focus on consistent sales and delivery that is highty

disciplined, pr‘ovlde a competitive advantage particularly with Iarger
chenr,s that have operatlons in rnult|ple markets.

/
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We believe 2003 was a bol:tommg-our. year for the economy and for
the staffing mdustr‘y after having declmed for appr‘oxmately three years
and that indicators favorable for staffing services improved through -
2006, Selected industry reports indicate the Unlr,ed States temporary
staffing industry has shown revenue levels of $81 billion in 2004, $107
billion in 20035, and $119 billkon in 2006. Of course, no predictions can
or should be made about the general economy, the skaffing industry as
a whole, or specialty staffing in particular. We do believe, however, that
a sustained economic recovery will stimulate demand for substantial *
additional LS. workers or conversely, an economic slowdown will cause
demand for additional U.S. workers to contract. We believe that Fiex
demand generally increases before demand for permanent placemants

. N
increases, that our three areas of functional focus, Tech, FA and HLS,
N

will be among the higher growth categories in both the short and lang
term and that over the long term, temporary staffing will become a
higherpercentage of total jobs, particularly in the professional, technical
and government areas. We also believe that the Government segment
will have more stable g\rov&th during variable -ecanomic cycles due to
the growth of r,he Federal agencies that are customers of Kforce and
dué to the use of outsourced tabor by many government agencies to
replace emplnyees who are retiring. In addition, according to a recent
survey of hoard members of mostly global companies by the American
Staffing Association, 80% of the companies surveyed now utilize tem-
porary staffing services. Further, w\e believe that the recent positive
trends in our operating results, which we believe have been enhanced
by the strearnlining of our operations and centralizing certain support
functions during the econemic downturn of 2001-2003, demanstrate )
a strong positioning for success. There can be no assurance thJEt cus-
tomer demand for Kfarce's sbecialw staffing sectors wilt return to pre-

vious levels or that pricing will return to historical levels. There can be

no assurance that the Kforce Health and Life Sciences business seg-
ment will be able to assemble a sufficient candidate pool to service
client needs. We also see additional opportunities for cur FA business
segment.s which are partially drrven by requirements at many public
cumpames pertaining to the adnptlon of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002. Competmnn for finance and accounting candidates
increased significantly in 2004, QODS, and 20086; however, there can
be no assurance that Kforce will be able to assemble a sufficient can-
didate pool to service client needs in finance and accounting. In addition,
a number of national staffing companies are 'increasingly utilizing a
lower-priced staffing preferredvendor: model. These factors may irﬁpact:
the future growth and profitability of Kforce.
Future Growth F

- Kforee's growth may be arganic and/or thraugh acquisition of other
entities that enhance or expand our existing businesses. We believe
that we are positioned'tn acquire and integrate other businesses that.
are strategically beneficial as evidenced by our successful acquisition
and integration of Hall, Kinion and Assaciates, Inc., VistaRMS, Inc., PCCI
Haldings, Inc. and Bradsan Corporation over the past three years.

~

B KFORCE INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Highlights
The sectu:ms that follow this overview discuss and r'efer‘ to critical

accounting estimates and recent. pronouncements, Kforce's resuits of

aperations and important aspects of its Iiduidity and capital resources. -

Set forth below are what we believe to be important highlights of our
A

operating results and our positioning for the future. Such highlights

should be considered in the context of all of the discdussions herein and

“in conjunction with the Financial Statements. We believe such highlights

are as follows:.

i
IR f

= Net service revenues improved 170% during 2006, with growth in
each of Kforce's operating segments for the year.

*» Search revenue grew 29.1% during 2006.

+ Kforce completed the acquisition and successful integration of PCC
Holdings, Inc. and Bradsan Corporation dumng the first and fourth
quarters. respectuvely As a result of the acqm5|tmn5 Kforce added
a new Gover'nrnent operating segment. - -

= Total year net income before taxes of $53.p million in 2006 is an
improvement of 42 6% over $37.2 million in 2005.- ~

* We believe that the guality of accounts receivable, our primary oper-
ating asset, continues to be good, with days sales outstanding ['DS0")
at 4014 days and 2006 bad debt recovery of $1.7 mitlion.

increased 9.1% from $11.16 on December‘ 8’I 2005, to $1217 at
December 31, 2006. ’

¢ - ’ 5

CHITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND , N

‘RECENT PRONGUNCEMENTS

The SEC has indicated that “critical accounting estimates” may be
material due to the levels .of subjectivity and judgrﬁent necessary to
account for highly uncertain matters-or the susceptibility of such mat-
ters to change, and due to their matemal |rnpact an f|nanc:al condition
or operating per’for‘mance Readers should also refer‘ to the Summary
of Significant Account;mg Policies in Note 1 to the Financial Statements
for additional informatian. The following discussion is intended to assist
the readers’ understanding of the judgments, accounting estimates,
and uncertainties inherent ip the more significant of Kforce's paolicies.

This section is not intended to be a comprehensive list of all account-
ing estimates and all accounting policies are not set forth in the Fin1an\cial
Statements. In many cases, the accounting treatment of a particular
transaction i specifically dictated by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, with no need for manage-
ment's judgment in their application. There are also areas in which man-
agement's estimates and its judgment in selectlng any avallable
alternative would not produce a materially different result.

_» Kforce's stock price on The NASDAEI Global Select Market

3
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Fallouts
Kforce has established a reserve for estimated credit losses and fall-

outs.on trade receivables based an our past experience and estimates
of potential future write-offs, a spacifi_c analysis of material receivable
balances that are past due, and ongoing analysis of factors including
short and long-term write-off trends, changes in economic conditions,
and concentration of accolnts receivable ah"nor]g clients. The allowance
as a percentage of gross accounts receivable was 2. (% as of Decem-
ber 31, 2006 and 4. 9% as of December 31, 20057 As of Decernber 31,

2008, no single client has a receivable balance greater than 3.2% of

total accounts receivable; and the Iargest ten clients represent approx-
imately 17.9% of the total accounts receivable bafance Kforce incurred
s:gmﬁcant write-dffs of accounts receivable in certam pm:lr years. For
the years ended Decembe/r 31, 2006, 2005. and 2004, Kforce
incurred bad debt (benefit} expense, including the effects of net write-
offs and recoveries plus changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts,

totaling approximately ($1,721,000), $38,000, and $1,8486,000,

respectively. in addition, for the years ended Decemmber 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004, Kforce incurred fa%lautsl of search placements which have

been deducted from net service revenues in the accompanying consol-

idated statements of iicome and comprehensive income totaling
approximately $2,256, 000, $1,967,000, and $’| 431,000, respectively.
. We cannot predu:t that such recent results can be sustained, particu-
larly in periods of revenie growth. Alsp, it is p055|ble that the write-off
results could be materially |mpacted as the composition of accounts
_receivable changes over time. This is especially true if the economy
“deteriorates. We continually review and refing the estimation process

_tomake it as responswe to these changes as possible.

Income Taxes - ‘

Kforce incurred net uperE;tir)g Ic?sses for each of the years ending
December 31, 2001, December 31, 2002 and If)ecember 31 2004,
and, as a result, accumulated 5|gmf|cant net operating loss carryfor\-
wards {NOLs) for both Federal and state income tax purposes. For
accountmg purposes, the estimated tax effects of such NOLs plus ather
timing differences, result in current and non-current deferr‘ed tax assets. '

. However, a determination must be made that it is more lkely than not”
‘that the deferred tax assets will be realized, or.valuation allowances
‘must be eétabli:shed ta offset-such assets. At December 31, 2002, a
"more likely than not” conclusion cauld fiot be reached, and the deferred
tax assets were fully reserved. Kforee also acquired Eertain deferred tax

- assets in 2004 from Hall Kinion which were also fully reserved at the

date of acquisition. Kforce had net income during each of the quarters
in the year ended December 31, 2003, and portions of the deferred tax
assets were recognized in that year by reducing such assets and the
related valuation allowances instead of providing income tax expense,
other than certain state tax expense or benefits. Kforce also had net

v /- -

A . . \

income during each of the quarters in the year ended December 31,
2004. Kforce believes that profitability in each of the quarters for the
years ended December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2004, and the
cor‘r‘espahding forecast of future operating earnings, justified changing
the conclusion reached at Decernber 3%, 2002. Therefore, for the year
ended December 31, 2004, Kforce recognized 8 $13.5 million income
tax benefit, which consisted of the reversal of the valuation allowance
in 2004, net of current, and deferred income tax of $5.7 million. In addi
" tion, during the year endgd‘December 31, 2004, Kfarce reversed $21.8
million of valuation allowance related to deferred tax assets acquirecHin
conjunction with the Hall Kinion acquisition. This reversal was recorded
as a reductian to goodwill. The tax provision recorded during the year .-
ended December 31, EDDS totaled $14.8 million, which resulted from
Kforce earning income before income taxes totaling $37.2 million and
Kforce's effective tax rate of 39.9%. The total tax provision recorded dur-
ing the year ended Decemnber 31, 2006 was $20.5 million, after a $0.9
mitlion benefit recorded as a result of the reversal of a deferred tax asset

A

valuation allowance. This resulted from Kforce earning income before
income taxes totaling $53.0 million, the reversal of the deferrad tax asset
valuation allowance discussed above and an effective tax rate before the
reversal of the deferred tax asset valuation allowance of 40.2%. At
December 31, 2006, Kforce has a remaining valuation allowance of $0.5
million ta offset certain daferred tax assets acquired from Hall Kinion, for
which a “more likely than nat” conclusion could not be reached: Kforce will

continue to evaluate this canclusion on a quarterly basis,

Goodwill ' .

Kfarce conducts an annua! assessment of the carrying value of good—
will in accordance with gener-ally accepted accounting standards. The
annual assessments found that no impairment existed for the years
ended December 31, 2008, 2005 or 2004. The annual assessment
requires estimates and judgments by management ta determing valu-
ations for-each “reporting unit,” which for Kforce are Tech, FA, HLS, ar;d‘
Government. To the extent that economic conditions or the actual busi-
ness activities and prospects of Kforce are materially warse in the .
future, the carrying value of goodwill assigned to any aor all of its report-,
ing units could require material write-downs. Kforce had goodwill of P
$222.3 million and $125.0 miflion at December 31, 2006 and 2005, -
respectively. $40.2 million of the increase in goodwill is attributable to
the achuisitiun of PCCI. $51.9 million is attributable to the acquisition of
Bradson, and $5.2 million is attributable to escrow share issuance

_related to the acquisition of Vista,

Kforce utilizes two primary methods in its annual ass\ess'ment of
goodwill, a discounted cash flow method and a market approach (the
guicteline public company method), and considers the results of each
to value its reporting units. The discounted cash flow method is an
income approach whereby the value of the reparting unit is determined

]
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by discounting each'repor\'cing unit's cash flow at an appropriate dis-
count rate. In the most recent assessment of goodwilt, Kforce utilized
weighted average costs of capltal ranging from 131 to 15.9 percent,
costs of equity ranging frum 13.9 to 16.2 percent, and an*after tax
cost of debt of 3.9 percent in arder to value each of its reporting units
under the discounted cash flow method. The guideline public company
method is an approach that applies pricing multiples derived fram com-
parable publicly traded guideline companies’ts the respective reporting
unit to determine its value. [n the most recent assessment of goodwill,
Kfarce utilized invested capital /revenue multiples ranging fram .40 to
1.50, and invested capital/EBITDA multiples ranging from 4.00 to
10.00 in order to value each of its reporting units under the guidefine
public company method. -

.

Impalrment of Long-leecl Assets :

Kforce periadically reviews the carrying value of long-lived assets to
determine if impairment has occurred. In Kforce's case, this primarily
relates to fixed assets, capitalized software, and identifiable intangible
assets (other than goodwill) from acquisitions, which are beiﬁg depre-
ciated or amortized as described in the Flnanmal Statements "and
which had net book values at December 31 2006 of $12 & million,
$8.4 million, and $24.3 million, respectively. Impairment losses, if any,
are recorded in the pertod identified. Significant judgment is required
to determine whether or not impairment has occurred. The determi-
nation is made by evaluating expected.future undiscounted cash flows
or the anticipated recoverability of costs incurred and, if necessary,
determiniﬁg the amount of the loss, if any, by evaluating the fair value
of the assets. As further described in Note 4 to the Financial State-
ments, impairment write-offs were $0.5 million in 2004, related to
cer‘taip internally developed and purchased software and were included
in selling, general and administrative expenses ["SG&A’). No such write-
offs were recorded in subsequent years, Evaluation of the impairment

of long-lived assets r‘equ"‘es the exercise of contmunng judgment ard °

estlmates by management. -

Pensiqn Accounting ) .
On December 31, 2006, Kforce implemented a Supplemental Exec-

utive Retirement Plan (the "SERP”) for certain named éxecut.ive officers:

The costs for $he SERP are calculated based on actuarial calculations

1
-

“using the key assumptipns discussed in the following paragraphs.

Becausi the SERP is unfunded at this time, we do nat have a long-
term r'ate of return. Once funded, we will determine our long-term rate
of ret;ur‘n on plan assets by der.er'mlmng the compasition of our asset
portfolio, our historical long-term |nvestment performance and current
rrlar'ket conditions. - =

could he materlally different. .

\

The discount rate used to determine benefit ohligatior\ws is ba%ed on
the |nterest rate for the langterm high-guality corporate bonds using
ylelds for maturities that are in line with the duration of our pensian lia-
bilities. The dsscount rate will be adjusted annually in order to reflect
the current level of interest rates at the measurement date.

: . - E >
Stock-Based Compensation ~ )

As of .Jaﬁuary 1, 2008, Kforce accounts for stock-based compensa-
tion under the provisions of Sgaternent‘of Financial Accounting Stan-
dards (SFAS) 123R, "Share-Based Pa;imem;" ("SFAS 123R"). Thig
statement requires Kforc_%: to measure the cost of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instrurments based on the
grant-date fair vafue of the award (with limited exceptions). That cost is
recognized over the period in which the employee is required to provide .
service in exchange for the award, which is usually the vesting period.
No compensation cost is reCognized for equity instruments for which
émpiayees do not render the requisite service.

Prior.to January 1, 2006, Kforce accounted for stock-based compen-
sation under the intrinsicvalue-based method pr‘escr'ilqed by Accounting
Princibleé Board ("APB") Opinion 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” ["APB 25", and disclosed the additional compensation

. expense that would have been recorded if the fair value based account-

ing had been used for options granted to employees and non-employees
under the provisions of SFAS 123, "Accouﬁting for Stock-Based
Compensation” ["SFAS 123",

p

&
Selfdnsurance

Kforce offers employee benefits programs.‘ including workers com-

|

pensation and health insurance, to eligible employees, for which Kforce
is self-insured for a portion of the cost. Kferce retains liability up to
$250,000 for each workers compensation claim and up to $250,000
annually for ‘gach health insurance participant for which it is not insured.
These selfinsurance costs are accrued using estimates Lo approximate
the liahility for reported claims and claims nncur‘red but not reported.
Kforce believes that its estimation processes are adequate and its esti-
mates in these areas have consistently been similar to actual results.
Hawever, estimates in this area are highly subjective and future resuits

Revenue Recognition - -

Net service revenues constitute the largest single item in our finan-
cial statements, fhough ;stirnates in regard to revenue recognition are
not material in nature. Net service revenues consist of Search-fees and
Flex billings inclusive of t;illable'expenses and net of credits, discounts,
rebates and fallouts. Kforce recognizes Flex b|IIrngs based on the hours
worked and reported, together wrth r‘elmbur‘sable expenses, by placed

“consultants. Bearch fees are recognlzed upan placement, net of an

‘
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allowance for “fallouts.” Fallouts are Search placement;é that do not
complete the spplicable contingency period which vary on a contract-
by-contract basis. Contingency periods are typicaliy-niné;y days'or less.
The 'qllowance for fallouts is estimated based upon historical activity of
Sear.\:h placements that do not complete the contingency period and
expectations of future fallouts, and is included with the allowance for
doubtful' accounts as a reduction in receivables.

"Accrued Commissions

Associgtes earn COMMISSIONS’as a percentage of actual revenue or
gross profit pursuant ta a calendar year basis commission plan. For
each associate, the amount. of commissions paxd as a percentage of
revenue or gross profiti mcr;eases as revenue levels increase. For interim
periads, Kforce accrues commissions for actual revenue at a percent-
age equal to the‘per'centage of total expected commissions payable to
total revenue for the entire year. in estimating the percentage of
expected commissions payable, Kforce uses factors including anticipated

write-offs and the revenue anticipated for each associate. To the extent -
that these estimates differ from the actual results, commissions
accrued could be materially different than commissions paid. Because .

of the calendar year basis of.the plans, this estimation process is mare
significant at interim quarter ends than it is at calendar year end.

Accrued Bonuses .

Kforce pays bonuses to certain executive management, field mare
agement and corporate employees based on, or after giving consider-
atiiin to, a variety of measures of guarterly and annual performance.
Executive management, field management, and certain corporate
emp?oyee bonuses are accrued for payment after year end, based in
part upon anticipated annual results compared to annual budgets. Field
management banuses are a component. of approved compensation
plans‘Which specify individual incentive target levels based on actual
results, Variances in revenue, gross margin, selling, general and admin-
istrative expenses or net incame at a consalidated, segment or individ-
ual manager level can have a significant impact on the calculations and
therefore the estimates of the required accruals. Actordingly, the actual
earned bonuses may be materially different from the estimates used to
determine the quarterly accruals.

Business Combinations -

Kforce accounts for acquisitions.of businesses in accordance with
the requirements of SFAS 141, “Business Combinations” ("SFAS 1417,
Pursuant to SFAS 141, Kforce utilizes the purchase method in account-
ing for acquisitions wherehy the total purchase price is first allocated to
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, and any remaining purchase
price is allocated to goodwill. Kforce recognizes intangible assets apart
from goodwnl if they arise from cont:r'ac:tual or ather fegal rights, or if
they are capable of bemg separated or divided from the acquired entity
and sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged. Assumptions and

. estimates are used in determining the fair value of assets acquired and

liabilities assumed in a business combination. Valuation of intangible
assets acquired requires that we use significant judgment in determin-
ing [i) fair value; end [ii) whether such intangibles are amortizable or
nor-armortizable and, if the former., the period and the method by which
the intangible asset wil be amoartized. Changes in the initial assumptions
could lead to changes in amortization charges recorded in our fi'nabncial

_ statements. Additionally, estimates for purchase price allocations may

change as subsequent information becomes available.
EFFECTS OF RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

SFAS 153, “Exchange of Non-monetary Assets,” amends APB Opinion
No. 29 to eliminate the exception for non-monetary exchanges of sim-
ilar productive assets and replaces it with a general exception for
exchanges af non-monetary assets that do not have commercial sub-
stance. This statement is effective for non-manetary asset exchanges
oceurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005, The adoption
of this standard did not have a material impact on Kforce's consolida\t.ed
fingnci@l statements.

In May of 2005, FASB issued SFAS 154, "Accounting Changes and Error
Corrections” ("SFAS 154"). This statement replaces APB Opinion 20,
“Accounting Changes,” and SFAS 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in
Interim Financial Staterments.” This statement changes the require-
ments for the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting
principte, and applies to all voluntary changes in sccounting principle.
This statement also applies to changes required by an accounting pro-
nouncement in the unusual instance that the pronouncement does Not
include specific transition provisions. Previously, APB Opinion 20
required that most voluntary changes in accounting principle be recog-
nized by inciuding in net income of the period of the change the curmu-
lative effect of changing to the new accounting principle. SFAS 154
requires retrospective application to prior pericds’ financial statements
of changes in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable to déter-
mine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the
change. This statement is effective for accounting changes and correc-

~ tions of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15,

2005, The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on

Kforce's consatidated financial statements. ’
In December of 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board

["FASB"} issued a revised versior of SFAS 123, "Share-Based Payment”

[*SFAS 123R"). This statermnent establishes standards for the account-

ing for transactions in which an entity exchanges s equity instruments
for goods and services, but focuses primarily on accounting for trans-
actions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based
payment transactions. This statement. supersedes APB Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and its r'elateg implemen-
tation guidance. This statement reguires a public entity to measure the
cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity
instruments based on the gr‘ént—dace fair value of the award [with

KFORCE ING. AND SUBSIDIARIES 9
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fimited exceptions), That cast is racagnized over the period in which the
employee is required to:provide service in exchange for the award,

which is usually the vesting period. No compensation cost is recognized
for equity instruments for which employees do not render the requisite
service. On January 1, 20086, Kforce adopted SFAS 123R using the
modified prospective method and the adoptidn of this standard did not
have a material impact on Kforce's Eonsulidated financial statements

because all of Kforce's outstanding stock options were fully vested as.

of December 31, 2005. "
In June of 2006, FASB issued FASB Interpretation ["FIN"} No. 48,

“Accounting for Uncertainty ih Income Taxes” ("FIN 48"). This interpreta:

tion clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized
in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS 109.
This interpretation prescribes s recognition threshold and measure-
ment sttribute for the financial statement recognition and measure-
. ment of a tax position tal;en or expected to be taken in a tax return.

Under this interpretation, the evaluation of a tax position is a two-step .

process. First, the enterprise determines whether it is more likely than
not that a tax position will be sustained upon exarmination, based on the
technlcal merits of the position. The second step measures the beneﬁt
_ to be recorded from tax posmsons that meet the mor&lxkely—than-nut
recognition threshold, whereby the enterprise determines the largest

amount of tax benefit that is greater than SO percent likely of being ™

realized upon ultimate settlement, and recognizes that benefit in its
financial statements. FIN 48‘also provides guidance on derecagnitidn,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, dis-
closure and transition. AN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 20086. Management has completed an initial evaluation
of the effect of adopting FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, and determined
the adoption of FIN 48 is not expected to have a material impact an
Kfarce's consolidated finan-cial position or results of operations.

In September of 2006, FASB issued SFAS 167, "Fair Value Measure-
ments” ("SFAS 157). This statement defines fair vatue, establishes a
framework’ for measuring fair vah/fe in generally accepted accounﬁng
principles ("GAAP"), and expands disclosures about fair value measure-
ments. This statement applies under other atcounting pronouncements
that require or permit fair value measurements; FASB having previausiy
concluded in those accounting pronguncernents that fair value is the
relevant measurement attribute. Accordlngly this statement does not.

- ~

-~
. -~
N

multiemployer plan}‘as an asset or liability in its statement of financial posk

tion and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which.
the changes cccur through comprehensive income. This statement also -

requires Kforce to measure the funded status of a ptan as of the date of
its year-end statement of ﬁnanéiar positian, with limited excep_t.iqns. Under
this statement, Kfarce will continue to apply the Provisions of SFAS 87,
“Employers’ Accounting for Pensions” ("SFAS 87"]: and SFAS B8, "Employ-
ers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtailment of Defined Benefit Pen-
sion Plans and for Termination Beneﬁt.s [ "SFAS 887, in measuring ptan
assers and benefit ubllgauons and in determining net pemodlc penston
costs. Employers with pubhcly traded equity securities, sugh as Kforce,

are required to initially recognize the'funded status of a defined benefit

paostretirerent plan and provide the required disclosures as of the end

_of the fiscal year ending’after December 15, 2006. The adoption of
SFAS 158 did not have a material impact on Kforce's consolidated finan-

cial statements for the year ended December 31, EOOB due to the fact
— that Kforce's Supplement Exetutive Retirement Plan was adqpted on the

last day of the year. However, the adoption of SFAS 158 may materially ~ -
impact Kforce's consolidated financial statements in future years to the

extant that Kforce: has an overfundéd or‘under'fl‘f.nded pension liability.

P -

RESULTS OF UPERATIUNS

Kforce saw a return to profitability in 2003 despite continuous

challenges in the Macro-economic. enwronment including high oil
prices, a weak U.S. dollar and a growing U.S. trade deficit, Profitability
cnntmued in 2004, EDDS and 2006 driven by revenue growth in all
segments and across both producc lines. We believe the expected
stabilization of the economic outlook Will allow for continued improv-
ing trends in the staffing industry and growth opportunities across
aur business lines in terms gf both revenue and p;*o}itability. We
believe this is particularly true in the Flex component of our revenues,
which historically has shown growth during the earty stages of an

economic recovery. Our Search business has shown growth in 2004,"
,2005 and 2006 and we believe that our focus on building the Search

sales team positions us to take advantage of improvements in the
Ssearch market; however, it remains difficult to predlct future growth
in our Search business. X ¢

We believe key components to our recent success were the initiatives
undertaken during the last several years to restructure both our back

require any new fair value measurements. However, far: some entities, - office and field operations and to upgrade corporate systems and tech-

the application of this statement will change current practice, SFAS 157

is effective for ﬂnanmal statements issued far fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007 and interim parlods within those fiscal
years. Kfurce is currently evaluatmg the impact of this standard on its
consolidated financial statements.

In December of 2008, FASB issued SFAS 158, "Ernployer‘s Accourting

for Defined Benefit Perision and Other Postretirement Plans—an amend-

ment of FASB Statements No. 87, B8, 106, and 132(R}" ("SFAS 158",

This statement requires Kforce o recognize the overfunded or under-

funded ststus of a defined benefit postretirernent plan (other than a
- .

-
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nology. The results of these efforts have increased aperating efficiencies,
thereby lowering our break-even level and enabling us to bé more

responsive to our clients. We believe our field operations model, which -
allows us to deliver our service offerings in a disciplined and consistent™
manner across all geogr‘aphles and business lines, as well as our hlghty

centralized back off ice oper‘atluns are COrT‘lpEtltIVB advantages and keys
to cur futur'e gr‘owth and profitability. -

The acqwsn:mns of Hall Kinign, ‘effective on June 7, 2004, Vnsta ~

effective February 1, 2005, PCCI. effective January.31, 2006, and

. Bradson Carporation, effective October 1, 2006, impéacted our financial ~

“- ~

s
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‘resmr.s and business drivers in the periodé'subseqhent to the acquisi- Net Service Revenues. The following table sets forth, as a per-
tions. As a result.of our successful integration efforts, revenues and centage of net service revenues, certain items in our consofidated

. costs contributed by commercial clients of the acquired entities are | statements of operations for the indicated years: -
merged into the Kforce business Segments. making it not feasible to : -

accurately estimate the impact of the acquired businesses on Kforce's Year Ended December 31, 2006 . 2005 . 2004~
consolidated revenues”and margifis. Federal government prime con- Revenue by Segment: . . o
tracting revenue and costs acquired with the PCCI and Bradsan acqui- ;-:Ch N . ggg % ggi %_ ggg’b
“gitions are reported in our new Government segment. Exclusive of any v 2 ’ : '
impacts of the acquisitions, we believe that demand is increasing and g:fernment 2;2 EB.E 243 b
revenues are growing in all business segments. In addition, we beleve Net sér‘vice revenues . 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

that the acquisitions have provideda positive impact on Flex revenues i
for the Technology and Finance and Accounting segments. Search Revenue by Time: |

_business and the HLS segment were not materially affected by the Flex ’ 92.4% 932% 93.7% -
acquisitions. Kfarce befieves a portion of the increase in 2004 SGEA, Search | ‘ 7.6 6.8 63 ~
primarily during the second quarter of 2004, is attributable to non- Net service revenues 100.0% 1000% 1000% -
recurring integration expenses, transaction-related charges and tem- T

" porary duplicate éxpenses related-to the acquisition of Hall Kinion. Gross profit 34.7% 324%. 308%
Likewise, we believe a portion of the increases in SG&A during 2005 Selling, general and . )
and 2006 are atr.rlbur.able to non-recurring integration expenses, administrative Expenses 27.4% 26.5% . 28.0%
g E P Income before income taxes . 5.6% 4.6% 1.7%
transaction related char‘ges and r.empor‘ar'y duplicate expenses refated Net income . T 3.5% 28%. 38%
to the acqguisitians aof Vlsta’PC.CI and Bradson. : - : .
The following table details net servaceir;evenues by service offering fur each busmess segment and percentage changes from the pr‘lor' year P
. ’ - .  Increase } Ingrease - -
(In thousands] - . - 2006 " [Decrease) 2005 [Decrease} . 2004 . -
Tech 3 : - : ) ' 7
Flex o $430,731 - 22.1%  $352,743 19.7%  $294598.
Search P SR -.25,638 42.1% 18,037 58.3% 11,397
Total Tech - - T R $456,369 - . 23:1% $370,780 21.2% $305,995
FA ' . -
Flex - -7 . :  $208,B15 (1.4¥% $211873 25.1% $169.411
Search ‘ _ - 40,688 27.8% 31,834 22.2% 26,098
Total FA . $245,503 2.4%  $243.707 247%  $195469
- - - ‘ ~
HLS ) - : " . . ’ :
+ Flex — < $195,162 6.8% $182775 171%  $156,071 -
Search | " 4,537 (9.3)% 5,003 27.8% 3916
TotalHLS ., $199,699 : 6.3%  $187.778 174%  $159887
Government ' y ‘ : ~ -
Flex LT $ 32,877 - — & 0 - - % —
Search | . P - — ) — - — —
° Total Government 7 $ 32,877 - — 3 — - $ - —
Total Flex ' : $867,585 16.1%  $747.391 205%  $620080
Total Search™ _ N 70,863 29.1% 54,874 32.6% 41371
Total Revenue L $938,448 - 17.0%  $B02,285 213% $661451
-Kforce experienced revenue growth in all segments in 2006 as well as 2005, Tech revenue increased 23.1% in 2006 versus a 21.2% increase
in 20035 from 2004. FA revenue increased 2.4% in 2006 buiding on a 24.7% increase in 2005, Our HLS business segment grew by 5.3% in

2006 cornpared t.o revenue grawth of 17.4% in 2005. In 2008, because of the acquisitions of PCCI and Bradsaon, Kforce added a new Government,
busmess segment
- . . ’ KFORCE INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 1’I
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While quarter‘ly comparisons are nat fully discussed herein, certain quarterly revenue tr'ends are refarred to in discussing the annual comparisans,

This 2006 guarterly |nformat:c|n |s presented only for this purpose.

v

’

2006 Quarter Ended

.lIn thousands, except Biiling Days) March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
Billing Days 63 B3 63 -B1
Flex Revenue . -

Tach $ 98,586 $107.,246 $110,720  $114,179
FA 52,888 51,885 53,329 50,713

"HLS ) - 48,596 - 49,916 48,788 47,862

Government 5,442 7,680 6.375 13,380
Tatal Flex $205,512 © $218,727 $219,212 $226,134
) i

Search Hevenue > - . .

“Tech ) $ 5,490 $ 6,249 $ 7417 -$ 6482
FA 10,113 10,478 - 10,737 9,360
HLS 1,183 p 845 1,334 1,075
Government, - : — —_ — —

Total Search $ 16,786 i 17,672 $ 19,488 $ 16,917

Total Revenue ’ : o

Tech $104,076 $113,495 $118,137 _$120,661
FA . 63,001 62,363 .B64,066 ~60,073
HLS 49,779 50,861 50,122 48,937
Government 5442 = .. 7,680 6,375 13,380

Total Revenue A $234,399 $238,700 - $243,051

$222,298

~

Flexible Billings. The primary drivers of Flex are the number of hours billed, bill rate per hour and, to a limited degree, the amount of expenses

‘ incurred by Kforce that are billable to the client.

‘Changing market share and the acqmsn:run of PCCl and Bradsan offset by a decrease in FA haurs billed, coupled with everall changes in oppor,
tunities as the result of continued ecanamic recavery are the main factors in changes in the number of hours billed. The decrease in FA-Flex

revenue of 1.4% in 2008 from 2005 is due to Kforce's focus on exiting tower margin gross profit business and impraving gross marging in the
FA segment. As a result, FA Flex gross profit increased 9.8% and.FA Flex gross profit percent increased 11.4%. Total hours billed increased 1.6%
-to 17.0 million hours in 20086 from 16.7 million hours in 2005, The increase of 12.8% in 2005 from 2004 was primarily result of the economic

recovery and the acquisition of Vista. Flex hours billed for the year, by segment, were as follows:

—

I8

~

i . - Increase . ) Increase N
{In thousands] 2006 [(Decrease) 2005 (Decrease) , 2004 .
Tech - 6.728 14.7% 5,965 131% - 5185
FA U 6,088 (14.4)% “7118 145% C 6214
HLS j 3,799 1.4% 3,746 - 9% 3.435
Government, 383 - — - = - —

. ™

Tatal hours hilfed 16,998 1.6% 186,727 12.8% 14.834

~

. .
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Billable expenses increased 18.9% in EODE to $18.4 million from $15.4 milkon in 2005 and increased 18,.8% in 2005 from $12. 9 million in
2004. The increase in 2006 was due to HLS and Tech segments’ project work, and the increase in 2005 was due to increases in HLS segment .
project work. As the economic environment improves, clients' requests for consultants for longer assignments, which usually involve travel, typically
increase. Changes in HLS billed expenses have cnr‘r‘esponded wmh the overall changes in Flex billings for the segment. Flex billable expenses included

in revenue for' the year by segment were: N
7

|
4 i

;

- L _ Increase Increase ‘
(In thousands) - ' 2006 (Decrease) 2005 (Decrease) 2004 -
Tech - $ 3,310 14.2% $ 2897 (B.8)% $ 3112
FA o~ x . 656 (8.1)% 714 (34.71% * 1003
HLS . ) 14,439 22.9% 11,745 34.6% 8724
Government - ) ‘ — — - - - —
Total billable expenses $18,405 19.9% $15.356 18.8% $12,929

Search Fees. The increase or decrease in Search fees is primarily

. attributable to the increase or decrease in the number of placements.

Total placerﬁents increased 17.3% to 5,382 in 2006 and increased
28.7% to 4,588 placements-in 2005 from 3,567 in 2004. Tech and
FA increased placements hy 33.2% and 15.0%. respectively, while HLS
decreased placements by 15.9% due to decreases in placements from
Kforce's Nursing and Seientific units for the year ended December 31,
2006. HLS ptacements represented 7.0% of Kforce's total placements
for the year ended December 31, 2006. Tech, HLS, and FA increased

. plécements by 51.6%, 23.0%, and 20.8%, respectively, for the year

ended December 31, 2005. An increase in the average placement fee
of 10.1% in 2006 and 3.1% in 2005 also contributed to the results.

- We believe these results are primarily attributable to the improving eco-
~

ngmic conditions. Search- activity historically increases after economic

‘conditions have shown sustained improvement and is strongest during

the peak_of an economic cycle, although there can be no assurance
that this historical trend will be followed in the current cycle. We believe
that the acquisitions of PCCl and Bradson have only had a minimat
impact on Search revenue ' for 2006. -

Gross Profit. Gross pr‘ofut, on Flex billings is der.errmned by deduct-
ing the direct cost of services [primarily flexible personnel payroll wages,
payrofl taxes, payrull;related insurance, and subcontract costs) from

net service revenues. Consistent with industry practices, gross profit -

. dollars from search fees are equal to revenues, because there are gen-

erally no direct costs associated with such revenues. Gross. profit
increased 25.4% to $326.1 million in 2006 and increased 27.5% to
$260.0 million in 2005 from $203.9 million in 2004. Gross profit as ;
a percentage of net service revenues increased to 34.7% in 2006
compared to 32.4% in 2005 and 30.8% in 2004. :

The change in gross profit is attributable to changeé in volume evi-
denced by changesfin hours billed for Flex and for the number of place-
ments for Search combined with changes in the spread between bil
rate and pay rate [“Flex Rate") for Flex or the bill rate ["Fiate"].for‘k Search. -
The increase in gross profit for Flex from 2005 to 2006 was $501 mik
lion, of which $4.0 million resulted from an increase in volume and
$46.1 milion resulted from an increase in the Flex Rate. The increase
in Search gross profit from 2005 to. 2006 was $16.0 million, com-
prised of a $10.0 million increase in volume and a $6.0 million increase
in Rate. The increase in gross profit for Flex from 2004 to 2005 was
$42.6 millian, of which $23.2 million resulted from an increése in vol-
ume and $19.4 millian resulted from an increase in the Flex Rate. The
increase in Search gross profit from 2004 to 2005 was $13.5 million,
comprised of a $12.0 millien increase in volume and a $1.5 million
increase in Rate.

~ \- - . R
Changes in total gross profit percentage for the year by segment are as follows: .
b Increase Increase
2006 - ({Decrease), 2005 {Decrease) 2004
Tech ' . 31.7% 7. 1% 29.6% 7.3% 276%
FA / ! 43.4% 13.3% 38.3% 2.2% 37.5%
HLS . N C 31.4% 3.6% 30.3% 5.0% 2B.8%
Government 32.0% — — - —
Total gross profit percentage 34.7% 7.2% 32.4% 51% 30.8%

KFORCE INC. AND SUB5IDIARIES 13
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Because Search révenue is accounted for as 100% gross prof?t,
changes in tf;e amiount of search fees as a‘pércgnt of total revenue
can significantly impact the total gross profit percentage.

Flex gross profit percentage has been positively irﬁpact.ed by improve-
ments in the Flex Rate in 2004, 2005, and 200B. We attribute this
improvement to our continued focus an pricing, client mix, and business
mix. Although we continue to see improverment, market prsssdr‘es on pay
rates as suppily tightens impact the Flex gross profit percentage Hega-
t.wety Additionally, payroll taxes, particularty unemploymenc taxes, which
are highest in the first quarter of the year because employees have not

Below is a table detailing Flex gr‘oss profir: percentage for t.he year by segment. -~

) o : i LN
yet earned sufflct\ent. wages to exceed the basis on which taxes are -

payable, have risen in Fecent years and may continue ta rise and neg-

" atively impact Flex gross proht in some cases, gross profit percens-

ages for Flex were negatively |mpacr.ed durmg 2004 by customer.
pressure to reduce bill rates and our inahility to lower consuttant pay
rates in response to Customer pressures The reduction in gross profit
percenr.age ! for the FA segment dur‘lng 2004 was primarily the result.

“of the inclusion of a larger mix of professmnal administrative pusmons
.- contributed by the OnStaff group. -

- Yo L - -
’ - Increase - Increase -

- . 2006 (Decrease)- , 2005 (Decrease] 2004~
Tech } ) 27.7%. = 6.2% 26.0% 49% 24.8%
~FA C S 323% 7 11.4% - 29.0% 41% - 27.9%
HLS ~ - ~ 29.8“& 5.0% 28.4% - 4.9% 27.0%

“Government : - 32.0% — - g — - =
Total Flex gross profit percentage 29.4% 7.2% - 274% T . 4.7% 26.2%

-~

Selling, General.and Administrative ("SGS&A") Expenses.’

SG8A expenses were $257.2 million, $212.7 million, and $185.5 mil-

lion in 20086, 2005 and 2004, respectively, increasing By 20.5% during -

2006 and increasing 14.7% during 2005. SGEA expenses as a per-
centage of net service revenues increased to 27.4% in 2006 from

2005 and decreased to 26.5% in 2005 compared to 28.0% for 2004,

The increase in SG&A exp/ense in 2006, as compared to 2005 and
2004, is primarily attributable to increases in dbmpensation expense

as discussed below. )

Total commissions, E:ompensal:ion, payroll taxes, and benefits costs
were $202.5 million, $164.7. milign and $137.9 million r‘epr‘esentiné
78.7%, 77.4% and 74.4% of total SG&A for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Increases in commis-
sions and cther incentive compensatiorf aré due to increases in gross
profit and improved sales. Additional increases in corhpensation
EXpense are due primarily to increases in headcount to support the
increased volume of business, the increasing costs of payroll taxes, par-
ticutarly unemployment taxes which have risen in recent years and com-

pensation expense related to an alternative longterm incentive grant,

" restricted stock and stock optians in 2006, 2005 and 2004, as dis-

cussed below. The guiding principles related to employee compensatlun
include competitive compensamon plans that clearly pay for perform-
ance and align with Kforce's objecmves. Commissions and related pay-

roll taxes and benefit costs are variable costs driven primarily by

revenue and gross profit levels achieved by assb(_:iates.

R
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On February 22, 2008, Kforc; granted to certain members of senior
management an alternative long-term incentive totaling $1.744 (the
“ALTI"). The tefms of the ALTI grant state thatthe ALTH w‘ssl:s‘fgily on
January 1, 2008, and the total ALTI shall-i‘ndr‘ease or decrease in value
equal to the increase or decr‘e'a"se‘ in the price-of Kforce's common

'stock over the period from-danuary 1, 2006 to January 1, 2008. In_

addltlon if the average clos:ng price of Kforce s common stock during

the period of January 1, 2006 to December 31, 2006 had been below

$6.70. the full amount of the ALTI would have been forfeited. During
20086, the average closing price of Kforce's common stock was not
below $86.70. As a result, none of the ALTI was forfeited. Kfarce has vai—
ued this grant using a Monte Carlo simulation at $1,882 ag of Decem-
per 31, 2006, and is amortizing this value over the vesting period of
February 22, 2006 to January 1, 2008. Accordingly, for'the twelve
months ended December 31, 2006, Kforce recorded $867 of com-
pensation expense related ta the ALTI. Going forward, ‘the fair value of
the ALTI determined under the Monte Carlo smulatlun will be updsted
guarterly, and remaining amortization expense will be adjusted for
changes in the value of the ALTI. h :

In January 2002, Kforce issued 223,800 shares of Festr;icl:’ed stock

-~

to certain members of senior managément and other employees in

exl:hange for voluntarily reducing their 2002 _salary and cash bonus
potential. These shares vested over a five-yéar‘ period with-an acceler-
ation clause if certain Kfarce common stock p‘r'icerthresholds were met.
During 2003 and 2002, $221,000 and $212,000, respectively, were
charged to compensatian expense for the straight-ine amortization of -
. . s

el

-
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vesting over the f:veyear period. On January 5, 2004 Kforee cammon

stock closed at a price level that fully satisfied the acceleration clause

for the 2002 sharas and all of such restricted smek thereby vested.
Because Kforce had been amortizing the value of such restricted stock

"ona straight-line basis over the five-year period, and t.he stock price

threshald had not been met on or pricr to December 31, 2003, Kforce
was required to record the unamemzed balance of $573,000 as com-
pensatian-expense in the pemod when the stock price threshold was

. achieved, which was the first quarter of 2004.

On September 9, 2004, the Compeneai:ien’Cemmittee of the Board

~of Directars of Kforce accelerated the vesting period of stock options

far all current employees that would otherwise have been unvestad an

" danuary 1, 2005. The  vesting period of options to purchase a total of

855,662 shares of Kforce's comman stock was accelerated. These

optlene are held by flfteen employees mcludmg options to purchase an”

aggregate of 748,162 shares of Kforces common stock held by six
executive officers.

Kforce recorded $1, 106000 of. compensatlen expense in 2005
related to severance of $882,000, option acceleration of $130,000,
and restricted stock acceleration of $94,000 due to the departure of
an executive officer. The remaining affected employees continued to pro-
vide services through their applicable Urigine\l vesting-dat.es; therefore,
there was no additional expense as a resuit of the acceleration.

In" addition to those activities undertaken to improve efficiencies, .
~ Al : . . .
Kforce has attermpted to manage its accounts receivable to minimize

write-offs and has significantly improved its accounts receivable aging

-

and collections processes during recent years. Though l:her\‘e_can be
no assurance that Kforce will be ahle to maintain low levels of write-offs
in the future, Kforce's ability to sustain minimum write-offs a;\d maintéjn
days sales outstanding of accounts receivable at low levels has con-
tributed to its continued low levels of SG&A as a percentage of rev-
enue. Bad debt recovery was $1.7 millian or 0.2% of revenue for the
\year ended December 31, 2008, and bad debt expense of $38.t]00
and $1.8 million or 0.0% and 0.3% of revenue far the yeer‘é ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Kforce has substantially restructured both its field and back office
.. operations over the past several years in an effort to manaée SGEA
. eXpenses as a percentage of revenue. Some of the aCtivities comelesed
over the past three years as a result of restructuring include’ {1) the
rollout of new front end software and related methodology in our field
operations to ensure a consistent, disciplined process in our sales,
recruiting and delivery activities; (2] the restructuring of co)mpenisaticm
plans to more closely align with actual performance; and (3) the restruc-
turing and conselidation of our technology infrastructure. As a result of
increased erﬁciencies achieved by these actions, we believe the back
affice and other support service costs will increase at a lower rate than
our revenues and profit in'a growing environment. Additional systemfe
initiatives are being undertaken in 2007 to further automate and inte-
grate processing and seppor‘h activities, which are expected to make
them more efficient to scale, while also enhancing exceptional buemmer
service capabilities. For example, we are developing new time-entry and
billing systems that are expected to be impl'emented in njid 2007.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization were $11.6 million, $8.3 million and $5.2 million in 20086, 2005 and 2004,
‘respectively; representing an increase Df 39.5% and an increase of 58.6% during EDDS and 2005, respectively. Depreciation and amortization'

expense 2s a percentage of net service revenue increased to 1.2% in 2006 from 1.0% for 2005 and Q. B% for 2004. Decreases or increases by

\

category of expense, for the year, are as fullows

o~

Percent

- _ Percent .
7 -
\ 2006 Increase _ 2005 Increase 2004
) . . Expense (Decrease) Expense (Decrease) Expense
" (In thousands) , ~ . -
Fixed asset depreciation $ 1,958 12.0% $1,749 (156)% $2.073
Capital lease asset depréeciation / . 2,283 78.3 1,286 486.5 227"
- o \
Capital software amortization N P34z 60.6 11459 948 749
+ Intangibte asset amortization . ' 4,885 39.5 3,502 807 1,836
Other amortization 4 ) 74 - (74.4) 287 (14.8) . 336
“Tatal depreciation and amortization $11,552 38.5% $8.283 58.6% 85,021
A / \ N . -
— - ~ ’ -

-
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The increase in expense in EDDE as compared to 2005 is primarily -

due to increased intangible asset amortization related to the PCCl and
Bradson acquisitions in Febﬁ.lary and October of 2006, respectively,
increased capital software amortization related to new front end soft-
ware, and new capital leases for technology equipment. The increase in
expense in 2005 as compared to 2004 is primarily due to increases
in amounts of .intangible assets amaortized as intangible assets
increased from the Hall Kieien and Vista acquisitions in June 2004
and February 20035, respectively, new capital leases for technology
equipment, and increased capital softwar'e armortization related to new
front end software. The purchases and implementation of the new
time- entry and billing software mentionad above, will tead to increases

" in software amortization in future years. We believe the implementation

. - / N
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

of this saftware will- enhance efficiency and productivity.

Other Expense. Other expense was $4.4 milion in 2006, $1.8
million in 2005 and $1.7 million in 2004, Other expense consists pri-
marily of interest on Kforce's credit facility. The interest expense

changes are primarily driven by changes in Kforce's outstanding bal- '

ance and changes in the one month LIBOR rate which is used as the
base rate in the credit facility. The average LIBOR rates in 2008, 2005
and 2004 were 513%. 3.46% and 1.54%, respectively. i

- Income Before Income Taxes. The income hefare income taxes

of $53.0 miliion in 20086, $37.2 milion in 2005 and $11.5 million in

- 2004, is primarily the result of changes in net service revenues and
gross rnar'gm and reduced SG&A and other expenses discussed above.

Income Taxes. The income tax provision far 2006 was $20.5 mil-
lion, the income tax provision for 2005 was $‘lf1.8 million and the
income tax benefit for 2004 was $13.5 million. The total tax provision
r‘ectnrded during the year ended December 31, 2006 was $20.5 mil-
lion, after a $3.9 million benefit recorded as a result of the reversal of
a deferred tax asset valuation allowance. This resulted from Kforce
earning income before incame taxes totaling $53.0 million, the reversal
of the deferred tax asset Valuat.mn allowance discussed above and an
effective tax rate before the reversal of the deferred tax asset valuation
allowance of 40.2%. The 2005 income-tax provision resulted from
Kforce earning income before income taxes of $37.2 milion and
Kforce's ef‘feccive_\tax rate of 38.9%. The 2004 incoeme tax benefit is pri-
marily attributable to the reversal of valuation allowances of $19.2 mil-
lion, initially recorded in EDDE against all deferred tax assets, affset by

current and deferrd tax expense of $9.7 million,

Net Income. Net income was $32.5 million in 2006 compared to
$22.3 miliion in 2005 and $25.0 miillion in 2004, resulting from the
net effects of those items discussed above.

Historically, we have financed our gperations rhmugh cash generated

by eper‘amng activities and funds available from cur r‘evolvmg credit facil-

ities. As hlghhghted in the St:etemem:s of Cash Flows, Kforce's quuuduty
and available capital resources are impacted by four key components:

' N - S~

- ~
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existing cash and eguivalents, upersting activities, investing activities

and financing activities.

Cash and Equivalents  ~ L
" Cash and equivalents totaled $1.6 milfion at the end of 2006,-a
decrease of $35.5 milfion from the $37.1 million at yearend 2005, As
further described below, during 2006, Kforce genereted $51.9 rmillion
of cash from operating activities, used $144.1 mlllldn of cash in invest-
ing activities and generated $56.7 million in financing activities.

-

Operating Activities

During 20086, cash flow praovided by nperations was approximately
$51.9 million, resulting primarily from net income, non-cash adjust-
ments for depreciation and amortization and for deferred income taxes, .
partially offset by an increase in trade FECEIVBDTES L

At December 31, 2008, Kforce had $62.8 m:lllnn in positive working
capital in addition to its $1.6 million of cash and equivalents. Its current
ratio [current assets divided by current liabilities) was 1.7 at the end of
2006 as compared to 2.5 at the end of 2005, '
Investing Actwltles ’ . .

During 20086, cash flow used |n investing activities was approxlrnately
$144.1 millign; resulting pr‘lmar‘lly from $136.7 million for the acquisi-
tions of POCI and. Bradson, $6.4 million in capital expenditures {con
sisting primarily of computer software and furniture and fixtures) and ’
investments in cash surrender value of Company-owned: life insurance
of $3.6 miillion, partially offset by cash praceeds received upen surren-
der of company owned life insurance of $2.6 million. Kforce expects
cash and non-cash capital expenditures to increase slightly in 2007,
primarily as the result of plans to develop and implement new custamer
contracts ma_n-.:agement. tirme-entry, billing and possibly other software.
Anticipated cash and non-cash capital expenditures in 2007 are cur-
rently expected to be in the $10 millian ta $1 2 millien range, and Kforce
believes it has sufficient cash and borrowing capacity to fund these and*
such other capital expenditures necessary to operate the business.

Financing Activities . ~

For the year 2006, cash flow provided by fmancmg ecuwtles was
approximately $56:7 million, resulting pmmarlly from the proceeds of
$10.4 million fram the exercise of stack options, $4.1 million from the

" excess tax benefit attributable to stock opuons and restr‘n:ted stock

and $51.4 million in net borrowings on our bank line of credit, pamalw
offset by the purchase of treasury shares of $5 4 million, payment of

. Fp‘D 5 million for toan financing costs and the repayment of $3.3 million

of capita) expenditure financing. )
Kforce periodically issues restricted stock as part of compensation -
plans for certain members of corporate and field management.
Details regarding these issuances can be found in Note 10 to-the ™’
Financial.Statements. o ’ B

~ i




Credlt Facml:y ' ~

Debt uur.standmg under the $140 million Second Amended and
‘Restated Credit Famllty with a syndicate of three banks (the “Credit
Facility”) was 585 4 rn||||un and $35.0 million at the end of 2008 and
20035, respectively. '

On October 2, 2006, Kforce entered inta a Second Amended and |
. Restated Credit Agreement, with a syndicate led by Bank of America,

N.A. {the "Credit Facility"). Under the Credit Facilil:y,‘KfDr‘ce increased its
indebtedness under its existing $100 million revolving credit facility.
Kforce's maximum borrowings under the Credit Facility are now limited
to $140 million, including a revolving loan tranche of up to $100 million
(the *Revolving Loan Amount”), an additional revolving loan tranche [the
“Additional Availability Amourit”) of upto $25 million, and a $15 million
subimit for lettars of credit. Borrowings under the Credit Facility are
limited to 85% of eligible accounts receivable, plus the fesser amount
of $25 million or 20% of the net amournt of eligibl-e accounts receivable,
mi?ngs certain minimum availability resegveé. Outstanding borrowings
under the Revolving Loan Amount bear interest at a rate of LIBOR plus
1.25% or Prime, and outstanding borrowings under the Additional Avail-
ability Amount bear interjést at a rate of LIBOR plus 3% or Prime plus
1.25%. Letters of credit issued under the Credit Facility require Kforce
to-pay a fronting fee ‘equal to 125% of the amount of each letter of
credit issued, plus 1.25% per annum of the total letters of credit cut-

"standing. To the extent that Kforce has unused availability under the

~
Credit Facility, an unused line fee is required to be paid equal to 0.25%

o
- .

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

of the average unused balance on a manthly basis. Kforce was required

" to pay a closing fee of $372.000 upon entering into the Credit Facility

and is also required to pay an annual administrative fee of $62,500.
Borrawings under the Credit Facility are secured by substantially all of
the assets of Kforce, Under the Credit Facility, Kforce is required to
meet certain minimum availability and fixed charge coverage ratio
requirements and is prohibited from making any dividend distributioris:
The Additicnal Availability Amount is reduced by $1.25 million per month .
beginning November 2006, until the Additional Availability Amount is
entirely eliminated, which will result in its eliminatio;l no later than June
2008. The Credit Facility expires on November 3, 2011,

in addition ta the $86.4 milion and $91.7 milion outstanding, the
amounts available under the Credit Facility as of December 31, 2006,
and March 2, 2007 were $25.5 million and $24.6 million, respectively. *

On June 23, 2005, our Board of Directors increased its authorization
for open market repurchases of common stock by $20 million to $135
millian. As of December 31, 2008 and March 2, 2007, we had repur-
chased approximately'ED.B million shares for $120.2 million under this
plan. Therefore, approximately $14.8 million was available under the cur-
rent board authorization as of December 31, 2006 and March 2, 2007.
Additional stock repurchases could have a material lmpact an the cash
flow reguirernents for the next twelve manths. )

B

Summarized below are Kforge's obligations and commitments to make future payments under lease agreements and debt obligations as of

Decerber 31, 2006:

| Less than More t\han
(In thousands) Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years .S years
Operating leases 7 % 42,910 $10,021 $11.950 % 6624 . $14315
Capital leases e 5105 3,009 - 2096 - i
Credit facility 86.435 " 10000 : - 76.435 -
Deferred cumpen:sation plan liability 11966 . 417 894 403 10252
. Other debt _ - . 838 838 _ - - -
" SERP liability . 42,943 — , - - " 42943
Tatal $190197 $24.285 $14.940 $B3.462 $67.510

~
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Kforce has a non—qualified deferred con‘Tpensation plan pursuant to
which eligible highly compensated key employéés may elect to defer-

part of their compensation.to later years. These amounts, which are

classified as other accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities, are .

' payable upon retirement‘or termination of employment. Amounts
payable upon the retlrement or termination of - employment may
become payable during the next five years if covered employees retire

" or terminate during that time.

The outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Loan currently bear
interest at a rate of approxmatety 6.6% and outstanding borrowings
under the Additional AVEII|EIDI|Ity Amaount currently bear interest at a rate
of approximately B.35%. Given these rates and outstanding barrowings
under the Bevelving Loan of $66.4 million and outstanding barrowings
under the Additional Availability Amount of $20 million, interest expense

-for the period of one year for the entire amaount of the debt would be
approximately $6.1 million. - .

Kforce provides letters of credit to certain vendor‘s n Ileu of cash
deposits. I-(force currently has letters of credit totahng $6.3 million out-
standing for famhty lease deposits, worker‘svoompensatlon and property
msur‘ance obligations. _

s

Kforce has no material unrecor‘ded commitments, losses, con-

tingencies ar guarantees associated with any related parties ar
“unconsaolidated entities, - ‘ ‘
. We helieve that existing casn ‘and cash equivalents, cash flow from
operaticns, and borrowings under the Credit Facitity will be adequate to

meet the capital expend:ture and the worl-ung capital requirements of

current operations fnr at least the next twelve months. However, dete- -

rioration in the business environment and market conditions could neg-
atwely impact operating results and hqmdn:y There is no assurance that,
.if operations were to deterlor'ate and additional financing were to
become necessary; we will be able to obtain financing in amounts suf-
 ficient to meet operating oequirements ar at terms which are satisfac-
tory and which allow us to remain competitive. Qur expectation that
existing resources will fund capital expanditure and warking oapiEaI
reqoirements is a forwaﬁd-looking] statement that is subject to risks

and uncertainties. . L

Actual results oould differ frorm those rndn:ated as a result of a number ~

of factors, including the use of currently available resources for possible
acquisitions and possible additional stock repurchases.
- - : {
Acquisitions - -
Kforce made acquisitions in 2006, 2005 and 2004 which are
discussed in Note 6°to the Financial Statements.

~ Bradson Corporation _
On October 1, 2006, Kforce entered into and closed a Stack Pur-

chase Agreement (the "S\tock’ Purchase Agreement”) by and amang -

Kforce, Bradson Corporation ["Bradson®), Kforce Government Holdings

'
- t

- . !
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Inc..a Florida corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kforce
["KGH“], Ronald M. Bradley, individually and on behalf of the other
shareholders; Barbara J. Lewis and David l\//l Halstead.

Bradson was a privately-held company based in Ar‘\li'ngton. Virginia, )

~and has been a 6rime contractor of Finance and Accounting profes-
sional services to the Federal government for over 20 years. Brad-
~ 80n's primary customers include the Department of Defense and the
Department of Homeland Security.- B
Pursuant to the terms of the Stock Purchase Agr‘eement KGH
aoqmred all of the outstandlng capital stock of Bragdson for a purchase
- price of $73 niitlion (the “Purchase Price’), which was subject to Brad-

son defivering a minimum of $4 milkan in wor‘kmg capital at the time
of closing. The cash consideration pald by KGH was comprised of .
Kforce's cash on hand and berrowings under Kforce's credit facility.

" On October 2, 2006, KGH placed intoe escrow $5 million of the total
Purchase Price to secure Bradson's indemnification obligations, and to
satisfy certain adjustments £ the Purchase Price. KGH, Bradson and
the shareholders have made certain ousl:omary representatlons war-
rantles and oovenants in the Stock Purohase Agreement Kforce is a
party to the Stock Purchase Agreement as a guarantor of the per-
formance of all ebligations of KGH, including all obligations to make the.
payments of the Purchase Price to the shareholders.
PCCI Holdmgs Ine. ; -

On January 31, 20086, Kforce acquired PCCl Holdings, Ino pursuant

“to an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Merger Agreement”) by
and among Kfor‘oe_,'Tre‘vose Acquisition Corporation, a Delaware cors
paration and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kforde [‘Merger Sub'’), PCCI
Ho[dings, Inc., a Delaware corporation, H.LG. Pinkerton, Inc., a Cayman
company, in its capacity as Representative, William D. Pinkerton and -
Richard J. Quigley. Under the terms af the Merger Agreeme’nt. Kforce

- acquired all of the ootstanding stock of PCCI for approximatély
$60,000 (the "F’ur‘c:h_ase1 Price] paid in cash at cipsing. subject to cer-
- tain adjustments as provided for in the Merger Agreerhent. On the
closing date Kforce placed into estrow $6,000 of the total Pur‘chase .
Price to secure PCCI's indemnification obligations, and to satlsfy cer-
tain adjustments to the Purchase Price.” During the quarter ended Sep—H
tember 30, EDC}SA to satisfy adjustments to the purchase price, $371
of escrow was r‘eturned to Kforce, and $629 was released to PCOI
from escrow, as. prowded for in the Merger Agreement dasoussed
above. The remammg $5. OC]O of the estrow deposm is available to satv ) ‘
isfy mdemmfuc:—:tmn obhgatlons of PCC! untll the expiration of the
escrow period on March 31, 2007, and has béen included in other
assets, net on the aocompanymg unaudited condensed consolidated
balance:sheet as.of Decernber 31, 20086. - .

PCCI was a privately-held company based in Trevose, F-‘ennsylvanla

that, through-its wholly-owned subsidiaries [prlmar|ly_P|nkerton Com-
puter Cansultants, Inc.), produced revenue of approximately $35 million




.

in technology staffing and the Federal governrnent IT services sector
during the 12 months ended Januar‘y 31, 2006. Approximately 35% of
‘that revenue-was generated in thelgover‘nmenl: sector. As a result of

the above acquisition, Kforce expanded its presence in technology -

staffing in bath the Federal government and commercial sectors. The
resuits of PCCI's operations since the dal;e of scquisition have been
inclpdecl in Kforce's consolidate‘d financial statements.
E - —

VistaRMS, Inc. . .

On Febr‘uar‘y 1, 2005, Kfor‘ce completed the acquisition of substan-
tially afl of the assets of VlstaFlMS Inc. ["Vista"), a pr'lval:ely-held company
based in Herndan, Virginia, in exchange for 2,348,337 shares of Kforce

cq'rnrnon stock. This transaouon was accounted for using the purchase

N

method. The results of \{ista'é operations since,the date of acquisition
_have been included in Kforce's consalidated financial statements. Vista
" had produced, revenue of approximately $50 million in technology
staffing over the 12 months prior to the acquisition.”

As considération for the purchase, Kforce issued 2,348,337
shares of Kforce stock of which 1,232,773 were held in escrow under

the terms of the agreement. The Kforce stock was valued at a price

of $1 1.5? per share, the-average markes price of the shares from

the period 5 days before and after the date the agreement was’
- signed and announced. At December 31, 2005, 1,584,336 shares

were issued under the terms of the agreement, with a total addition

" to equlty of approximately $18,324,000, and 450,000 shares

remalned in escrow. Kforce also incurred approxlrnately $455,000
in transaction costs, !v'hlch includes approximately $179,000 of
transaction costs paid in 2004, and assufned net liabilities of approx-
imately $663,000. On February 2, 20@8, 225,000 of the 450,000
shares remaining in escrow were issued under the terms of the

- agreement resulting in an increase in ‘goodwill of approximately

. %2, EDE 000. On August: 1, 2008, the r‘emamlng shares in escrow
were issued under the terms of the agreemEnt resulting in an

- increase in goodwull of approximately $2,603,000.

-

~ Hall, Kinion and Associatés inec.

OnrJune 7, 2004, Kfor‘oe acquired 100‘5/0 of the putstanding comman
stock of, Hall, Kinion and Associates Inc. (*Hall Kinion®) and its sub-

i sidiaries in exchange for approximately 5.7 million shares of Kforce

stock. This acq\uisitio_n was accountecl for using the purchase method.

_Hall Kinion's first quarter 2004 and full year 2003 FEeVENUES were

$30.4 million and $156.9 million, respectively. The results of Hall Kin-

As a result of this acquisition, Kforce expanded its market presence
by adding 18 offices, not including 25 offices that have been consol-

dated with existing Kforce offices. The acquisition also expanded ~
Kforce's service offerings in technnlogy and finance and accounting in '

certain market segments. We belleve the integration of the operatlons
of Hall Kinion into Kforce is substantially complete and has had a posi
tive effect on revenues, net income and earnings per share beginning
in the third quarter aof 2004. We have not compiled separate results
for the former Hall Kinion operations because these oﬁerations have
been integrated into Kforce and it is nat feasible to track their resuits,
Details of the terms of the acquisition are included in a Registration
Statement on Form S-4 that we filed on December 24, 2003, and
amended on February 9, 2004, April 13, 2004, May 3, 2004 and
May 5, 2004. .- - P

—~

Income Tax Audits_

We are also periodically subject to state and other local incame tax _

audits for various tax years. During 2006, a Kforce Inc. income tax audit
for the state of Texas was concluded with no material adverse assasfs-
ments. During 20086, Kforce Gavernment Solutions, Inc. (formerly Pinker-
ton Computer Consultants, Inc), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kforce, had

ongoing audits being conducted by the states of New Jersey and New B

York. As of March 2, 2007, no final determination has been made in
these audits. We do not believe the resolution of any of these audits will
have a material adverse impact on our operations or financial condition.
During 2006, Kforce Government Solutions, Inc. also had an ongoing
audit being conducted by-the IRS related to its December 51, 2004

Federa! income tax return. On January 34, 2007, this audit w‘as‘sattled

ion's operations since the dete of acguisition have been included in *~
" Kforce's consolidated financial staternents. Hall Kinion specialized in

providing technology and finance and accounting related talent an a

- temporary and permanent basis to its customers primarily in the United

. segment.s respectively.

States: The results of the tel’:hn’ology\and finance and accounting busi-

. NESSEs [pr"evinusly provided by Hall Kinion's "OnStaff” group)] are

included in Kforce’'s Technelogy and Flnance and Accounting business

PN

with no changes to the previously filed 2004 tax return. /

B

- - N

Registration Statement on Farm S-3 -

On May 24, 2002, Kforce filed a Registration Statement on Form
S-3 that allows the issuance of up to $250 million of common stock
and other equity and financial instruments for the financing of various .
corporate activities to potentially include funding for acquisitions\and
other business expansion oppartunities, s well as compensation”
arrangements: Such filings are referred to as "Shelf Fleglstramons No
issuance of securities has been made under this registration state-
ment as of December 31, 2004. The Shelf Registration was not used
for the shares issued in connection with the Hall Kinion or Vista acqui-

sitions because Shelf Registrations on Form S-3 are not available for -,

the registration of securities issued in business combination transac-
tions. There is no assurance that the existence of the Shelf Registra-
tion will assist Kforce in registering its securities in connection with
future effarts to raise capital or for other purposes.
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' MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
S " FINANCIAL REPORTING -

During January EDDB we acquired PCCI Holdmgs Inc. Durmg October 2008, we acquired Bradson Corporation. As permitted by Securities and
Exchange Commission guidance, the scope of our Section 404, evaluation far the year ended Decémber 31, 2006 does not include the- interna
controls over financial reporting af the Government segment of the acquired operatlons of PCCI Holdings, 1nc or Bradson Corparstion. The Gov-
ernment segrment of PCCI Holdings,1hc. and Bradsaon Carporation are ll‘lClUdEd in our :unsuhdated financial statements from the date of acquisition.

The Gavernment segment of PCCI Holdings, Inc. and Bradson GCorparation reprasented apgroximately $9.1 million and $5.8 million of tota! assets

and net assets, respectively, as of December 31, 2006 and approximatety $32.9 million and $1.2 million of revenues and net income, respectively,
for the year then ended. From the acquisition date to December 31, 2006, the pr"ocesses and systems of the acquired operations were discrete
and did not significantly impact internal controls over financial reporting for our other consolidated subsidiaries. B .

The management of Kforce is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controt over financial repnr't.ing.'KfDr'ce's internal
control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to Kforce's management and Board of Directors regarding the preparation and
fair presentation of published financial statements. . ’

All internat control sysr.ems no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determmed to be effective

- can provide only reasanable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. - -
Kforce-management assessed the effectiveness of Kforce's |nter‘na1 cantrol over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, In making this assess-
ment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsnnng Organizations of the Treadway Cammission (00S0) in internal Controntegrated

Framewark. Based an our assessment we beheve that, as of Oecember 31, 2006, Kforce's internal control over financial r‘epor'tlng is effective based

on those criteria. .- .
Kforce's mdependent r‘eglster'ed public accnuntmg hrm Deloitte & Touche LLP, has issued an audit report on our assessment of Kforce's mternal
control over flnanc‘.lal r'epor‘t.lng This report follows -
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED :
§ o PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM S

To the Buard of Directors and Sl:ockholdera of Kforce Inc
Tampa Florida

/

We have audited managements assessment, included in the accompanying Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.
that Kforce Inc. and subsidiaries ("Kforee”) maintained effective internal cantrol over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria
established in J'ntemal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Cormnmission. As
described in the Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management excluded from its assessment the internal
control over financial reporting of the Government’ segment of the acquired operations of PCCI Haldings, Inc. (*PCCI) and Bradson Corporation
["Bradseon"). which were acquired on January 31, 2008 and October 1, 2006, respectively, and whose financial statements constitute approxi-
mately $9.1 miflian and $5.8 million of tot;al assets and net assets, respectively, as of December 31, 2006 and approximately $32.9 million and

-$1.2 million of revenues and net income, respectively. for the year then ended. Accordingly, our audit did not include the internal contral aver finan-

ciat reporting of the Government segment of the acquired operations of PCCI and Bradson. Kforee's management is responsible for maintaining
effective internat control over financi'af repurting‘and for its assessment of the effectivenass of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of Kforce's internal control over flnanc:ual
reporting based on our audit. ) '

We conducted our-audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversxght Board (United States). Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit ta obtain-reascnable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was

maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating manage-_

ment's assessment, testmg and evaluat.lng the design and operating effectiveness of internal contral, and par’fermlng such other procedures as
we constdered necessary in the cxr'curnstances We believe that cur audit provides a reasonable basis for cur opinions. .

A companya internal controt over financial reporting is @ process designed by, or undér the supervision aof, the company 's principal exgcutive and
principal financial officers, ar persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's board of directors, management, and other per-
sonnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purpbses in accordance with generally acceptad accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1] pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonahle assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparstionof financial state-
ments in accordance with generally accepted accounﬁing principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely -

detection of unauthonized acquisition, Use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. .

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of callusion or improper management over-
ride of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation
“of the effectiveness of the internal contral over-financiat. repomng to future pericds are subject to the risk that the contrals may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree ef cumphance with the policies or procedures may detericrate. , I

In our opinion, management's assessment that Kforce maintained effective internaj control gver financial reporting as of December 31 EDC}B is
fairly stated, in all material respact;s based on the criteria established in internal Control-integrated Framework issued by the Cornmlt;tee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, Kforce maintained, in all material respects, effective internal controf
over financiaf reporting.as of December 31, 2006, based on the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework |55ued by the
Committee of Spnnsnrmg Organizations of the Treadway Commission. '

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated

financial statements as of and for. the year ended December 31, 2006 of Kfarce and our report dated March 2, 2007 expressed an unqualified

opinion on those financial statements. § -

~ -

Deloitte & Touche LLP - :

Certified Public Accountants . . p -
, ~ - N

Tampa, Florida

March 2, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED : o

-

I . PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

5 4 s
Tothe Board of Directors and Smckholders of Kforca Inc.~

Tampa, Flurlda P C : -

We have audited the accumpanying consolidated balance sheets of Kforce Inc. and subsidiaries ("Kforce'} as of December 31, 2006 and
2003, and the related.consolidated Sr.atements of income and comprehensive income, stockhaiders' eduity, and cash flows for each of the three
- years in the period ended Decermiber 31, EDOB These financial statements are the responsibif lty of Kforce s management, Cur responsibility is
“to eXpress an opinion-on the financial statements. . - '

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accaounting 0ver‘snghc Board (United States). Those sr.andards,
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of materiat misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basts, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures n the financial staterments, An audit atso includes
assessing the accountlng prlnmples used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentatian. We believe chat: our audits provide a réasanable basis for our oprnron - - - - - -

- - o~

In our opinion, such consulldated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of Kforce Inc and subsidiaries

as of December 31, 2008 and 2005, and the resuits of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the pemod ended
“~December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting principies generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in actordance Jiwith the standards of the Public Company Accountmg Dver‘5|ght Board (United States), the effectiveness

' of Kforce's irternal control aver financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on the criteria established in Internal Control-integrated Frame-

work issued by the Committee of Spo'ﬁsor‘ing Drganizatior\ls of the Treadway Commisstan and our report dated March 2. 2007 expressed an

- unqualified opinion on management's assessment of the- effectiveness of Kforce's internal contral aver financial reporting and an unqualified opinion

on the eﬁecaveness of Kforce s internal control over financia) reporting. - ’ =

hS
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* . CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

/ . - - N - ’ N ; AN

-~

(tn thousands, except per share amounts)

December'31, ' ~ . : 20086 2005
A | ;

ASSETS ' : .

Current Assets: ' o C - . -
Cash and cash equivalents - . : $ 1,589 $ 37104

~ Trade receivables, net of allowance far 'doubtf_ul accounts . )

and fallouts of $2.715 and $5,098, respectively - : : 134,453 . 99354

. Income tax refund receivable ;- ) 1,067 72

* " Current deferred tax asset, et | B . 8,892 15.793

Prepaid expenses and other current assets B 4,453 - 3.236

Tatal current assets - . . : : 150,454 155,559

Fixed assets, net "~ > - : / T , 12,610 10,148

Non-current deferred tax asset. net ‘ N - : _ ’ — 3 '/ 4451
Other assets, net o o . N 32,993 " 20248

Intpngible assets, net : ’ T 24,259 . 8,336

> Goodwill - _ ] : - 222,302 125,004

Tatal assets ’ > k $ 442,618 $ 324,746

LIABILITIES AND STDCKHDLDEF!S' EQUITY N " { h

* Current Liabilities: , % ' S ' ) : o
Accounts payable and other accrued lisbilities : ‘ ' $ 24,169 $. 19,808
Acerued payroll costs - - ' . 46,455 38,332

- Benk overdrafts - S g 631 146
Credit facilty—current portion - . ! _ 10,000 -
Other current debt N - . 3,375 2,885
Income taxes payable . _ : ) 1,399 849

- Total current liabilities N . ' o 86,029 63,020
Long-term debt—credit facxllty ‘ \ . . _ : ' 76,435 ’ 35000
Long-term debt—other A _ ) 2,084 3167
Nor-current deferred tax liability, net ) o - 1,004 -

; Other longterm Ii'e"itiilities . . I 15,141 12,857
Total liabitities ‘ . _ : o 180,693 114044
: j T I - - N

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12) l . -7 "

Stockhulders Equity: -

’ Preferred stock, $0.01 par, 15 DDD shares authorized, h
none issued and outstanding : - ' — -
Common stack, $0.01 par; 250,000 shares authnrlzed . . - -

« 60,383 and 57,895 issued, respectively . ~ - 604 579
Additional paid-in capital oo v . 300,485 “ 278.486
Unamartized stock-based compensation - - : b - b — i (1.094]
Retained earnings— ~ - o ' 72,213 39,694

: Less reacquired shares at cost; 13,451 and 19,238 shares, respec:twely - (111,377) (106,963 \
v 4 . Total stockhoiders’ equity- - ' . - . 261,925 210,702
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . , : $ 442,618 $ 324,746
N — = n
" The accompanying notés are an initegratupart of these consolidated financial statements. ‘ - Cor.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

;

.

AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME -

’ ' .
[In thousands, except per share amounis)

- = : ) . : k ) f

’

-~

Years Ended Oacember 31, - -~ 20086 2005 2004
Net service revenues $938,448 " 3802265 5661451
Direct costs of services 612,349 _ 542,276 457567
Gross profit ~ 326,099 259,889 203,884
. Selling, general and administrative expensés * 257,187 212724 . 185488
Depreciation.and amortization ~ 11,552 8,283 5221 .
Income from operations 57,360 - 38,982 13179 ~
Other expense (income): h - ) N Vo
Intergst income . = [‘! 74) (189) (98]
Interest expense , _ 4828 . 7 2055 1827
Other (income) expense;.net ’ ' - - (100) (40} (28]
tncome before income taxes - 53,006 37166 11474
Provision (benefit) for income taxes : ~ 20,487 14845 {13.537).
Net income RS ‘ D 32,519 22,321 ~ 25011 -
Other comprehensive (loss) income; L :
Cash flow hedges, net of taxes ; — (37) 188
- _ . ) R .
Comprehensive income : ' ’ - $ 32,519 $ 22,284 ' % 25199
y “ ‘ 7
Earnings per share~Hasic $0.81 < 058 ¢ 5073
Weighted average shares outstanding—Basic 40,189 . 38,527 . 34125 -
) . 7 1 \
Earnings per share—Diluted . $0.77 F0.55 $069 -
- ! . N r .
Weighted average shares outstanding—Diluted T 42,012 40618 36,091
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. - i -
{ . X ¢
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'GONSOL‘IDATE.D STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

~. t N \ -
(In thousands) ~
Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
Common stock—shares; ] .
Shares &t beginning of period ; 57,8985 55,891 48,903
Exercise of stock options : 1,740 420 849
Stock issued for business acquired 450 . 1584 5,742
Issuance of restricted stock 298 - 397
Shares at end of period 60,383 57895 55.891
Cornmaon stock--par value: - -~ -
Balance at beginning of period ' $ 579 $ . 539 $ 489
Exercise of stock options 17 4 9
Stock issued far business acquired . ‘ 5 16 57
Issuance of restricted stock ) 3 - a4
Balance at end of periad $ B04 ~ 3 579 $ 559
Additional paid-n capital: _ ;
Balance at beginning of period . A % 278,486 $ 257,315 $197660°
Exercise of stock aptions 10,401 2,066 4.505\'
Tax benefit from exercises of stock options and restricted stock 5,700 ~aa 611 -
Reclassification of unamomzed stock-based
compensation to additional paid-in capltal (1,094) - - =
Stock-based compensation 1,160 — -
Employee stock purchase ptan’ 638 256 68
Stack issued for business acquired N y 5,197 18,308 51.331
Issuance aof restricted stock 3] — 3139
Balance at end of period * $ 300,485 $27B8,486 $257.315
Unamortized stock-based compensation: R
Balance at beginning of peried - . $ [(1,094) % (2,759] $  {BB3)
lssuance of restricted stock, net — - (3143)
Amortization of stock-based compensation - — 1665 1247
Reclassification of unamortized stock-based )
compensation to additional paid-in capital 1,094 - i —
Balance at end of period $ — $ (1094) ' [2.759)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
Balance at beginning of period  ~ .- — 3 37 $ (151)
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of taxes — (37) 188
Amortization of hedged interest o —_ ;- R
Balance at end of period - , _ B — $ — $ 37
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)/ - :
Balance at beginning of period ‘ $ 39,694 $ 17373 $ (7638
MNet. income ~ = 32,519 22.321 ' 25011
Balance at end of period - | $ 72,213 $ 39894 $ 17373
Treasury stock—shares:
Shares at beginning of period _ . 19,238 18,614 . 18350
Deferred compensation plan transactions —_ . - —
Employee stock purchase plan , (172) (127} (121)
Repurchase of common stock 7 385 751 385
Shares at end of period ' 19,451 19,238 18,614
Treasury stock—cost: . -
Balance at beginning of period v N ${106,963] $(101,756} $ (98.092)
Deferred compensation plan transactions —_ - -
Employee stock purchase plan - 858 - 705 646
Repurchase of common stock T / [5,373) [5,912] (4310
- Balance at end of period ' $(111,377) $(106,963) $(101,756)

The accompanying notes are an integra part of these consolidated financial statements. ..
v - : -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS"

~ . . - \

/

[In thousands) s T ¢ L ) a ) ; ’
Years Ended December 31, L . . 2006 2005 - 2004
Cash flows from operating actlwtles - - .. . - C .
Net. income - ~ - ) .. % 32,519 $ 22,321 $ 25011
Adiustments to reconcile net income to 7 - . T )
cash provided by operating activities: . o~ - B Tt - ‘
Deferred income tax provision (benefit], net \ .. 18803 14845 . _ (12,789
Depreciation and amartization N 11,552 B,283 T 5021
Excess tax benefit attributable to stock options and restricted stock (4,058) . — ——
{Recovery of) provision for bad debts on accounts receivable " ’ (1.721) ' 28 1,846
Gain on cash surrender value of Company-owned life insurance palicies ) (521) ~(83} (95).
Armnortization of stock-based compensation ‘ - 1,160 1,795 1,247
Amortization of alternative long-term incentive expense . .. -~ BB7 ° - =
Deferred compensation expense . , 859 . 533 404
| Laoss {gain) on asset sales/ disposals L . ) 24 - (38} 224
. .- Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan expense - . = T =
' Lass on asset impairment T . : A — T = 498
, {increase] decrease in operating assets: | . ) o
| Trade and notes receivables, net i ) P ] 0,207).. 14282 (13,0901
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . 53 ° 1037 {458)- -
Income tax refund receivable - 2,140 ! 533 [338]
QOther assets, net ' . 7 o1 L 124 (314)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities: ’ ) - ) - . "
Accounts payable and ather, accrued liabilities - o D - (1,768) - L' (3865] (807]
* Accrued payroll costs - ) ' - - ;8,125 ) 6,861 - 4745
._Bank overdrafts ' o . 486 ©. (1,204) (2,040]
Income taxes payable - . . ; -7 (1,009) -(41) 203
Cther liabilities : - ' 729 ~ 7 {970) (1,970)
Cash provided by operating activities - 51,948 51,443 7498
— - . : - §
Cash flows from investing activities: - C " - . .
Acquisitions, net of cash received - (136,732) (2.803] {2s02) =
, Capitsl expenditures b . (65.433) - (5,304) " (3646
investments in cash surrender value of Company-owned life insurance g (3.643) _ (2208] - (11181
Cash proceeds receuvedﬁupon surrender of Company-owned fife insurance 2803 -~ 7 . — —
Release of restricted cash \ - ) _ . 964 -
-Cash proceeds from sale of assets ) \ B3 13 42
Cash used in investing activities- ' 7 [144,142)- " (9.525) ©_(32.734)

, Cash flows fram financing activities: o T " 7 ) _—
Proceeds from bank line of credit . " 443,615 157,835 241688
Payments on bank line of credit - (392,180) ~ [156,3935) (229,588}
Payment of loan financing costs ) T (529) (250] ' - -

~ Payment. of capital expenditure financing T ‘ (3.330] (2.055] v [421)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options N - 10,418 2140 - 4815
Excess tax beneﬁt attributable to stock options and restmcted stock 4,058 Lo - =
N Repurchases of common stock ., (5,373) (5.812) - (4310 —
. Cash provided by {used in} financing activities ' . ~56,679 {8177} 11884 -
N - . " )
- Charige in cash and cash equivalents g _ i 3 (35,515) - - 36,7417 S (13,352}
Cash and cash €quivalents at beginning of year o ' - 37,104 © 363 13,715 —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year © $ 1,589 § 37104 5 363
The accompanying notes ane an?ntegral part of these consolidated financial statements.
" B -~
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(In thousands, except per share data) > L

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization .
Kfurce Inc and subsidiaries ["Kforce") IS 8 prowder of pr‘ofesmonal
sr.affang ser\nces in 74 locations in 43 markets in the United States.
Kforce provides its customers staffing services in the following special-
ties: Technology, Finance and Acceunting. Health and Life Sciences and
Government. Kforce provides flexible staffing services on both a tempo-
. nary and contract basis and provides search services on both a contin-
gency and retained basis. Kforce serves Fortune 1000 companies,
Federal and state governments, as well as local and regional, small to
mid-size curnpames
. e
Principles of Consclidation -

-The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Kfarce
tnc. anc\i its subsidiaries. References in this ducument to "Kforce," “the
Company,” “we,” "our” or "us” refer-to Kfarce ar its subsidiaries, except
where the context otherwise requires. All material intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated in consclidation.

' ! ~
Use of Estimates
v The preparation of financial statements in confarmity with aceounung
“principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assurnptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the fmanmal statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses dur'mg the r‘epor‘bmg
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

s > —_
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Kforce classifies all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of
three manths or less as cash equivelents.
1 ) - .
Aliowance for Doubtful Accounts and Fallouts
Kfarce has established a reserve for expected credit losses and falk
" outs’on trade receivables based on past experience and estimates of
- potential future write offs. Kforce performs ongoing analyses of factors
including recent write off and delinguency trends changes in economic
caonditions, a spemﬁc analysis of material receivable balances that are
past due, and cuncent.ratlon of accounts receivable among clients in
.esbablishing this reserve. The allowance as’a percentage of gross
- accounts receivable was 2 (%-as of December 31, 2006 and 4.9% as
of December 31, 2005. No single client has a r‘eeewable balance
greater than 3.2% of the total accounts receivable and the top ten clients

represent a;ﬂpr‘oximately 17.9% of the total accounts receivable balance.

Fixed Assets

. Fixed assets are carried at co.:it. less accumulated depreciation.
" Depreciation is cornputed using.the straightdine method over the esti-

mated useful lives of the assets. The cost of leasehold impraverments

- -

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

-is amortized using the straightine method over the shorter of the esti-

mated useful lives of the assets or the terms of the related Ieases
which range from three to fifteen years.

Income Taxes . - o
Kforce accounts for income taxes under the prmcuples of Statement
of Flnanmal Accounting Standards {"SFAS") 108, "Accounting for Income
Taxes." SFAS 109 requires the asset and liability approach to the recog-
nition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax con-
sequences of the differencas hetween the financial statement carmng
amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. SFAS 109 requires

" that unless it is "mare likely than not” that a deferred tax asset can be uti-

lized to offset future taxes, & valuation allowance must be recorded
against that asset. The tax benefits of deductions attributable to the
employees’ disqualifying dispositions of shares obtained from incentive -
stock options, exercises of non-qualified options, and vesting of restricted
stock are reflected as increases in additional paid-n capital.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments )
Kfarce, ueing availaﬁle market information and appropriate valuation

P methadologies, has determined the estimated fair value of financial™

instruments. However, considerable judgment is required in mter‘pr‘etmg
data to develop the estimates of fair value. The fair values of Kfarce's
financial instruments are estimated based on current market rates and
instruments with the same risk and maturities. The fair value of long-
term debt ebpmxfmates its carrying vaiue due to the variable interest
rate applicable to the debt.

Goodwill and Intang;ible Assets

In accordance with SFAS 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,”
Kforce does not amartize goodwill but performs an annual review to
ensure that no impairment of goadwill exists. On December 31, 20086,
Kforce corﬁpleted a valuation of its four reparting units which consist
of Finance and Accounting, Technology, Health and Life Sciences, and

. Government. The results of that valuation indicated that the fair value

of each of Kforce's reporting units exceeded the carrying _values of
those reporting units. Therefore, Kforce concluded that there was no
impairment of goodwill, In some of Kforce's acquisitions, a partion of
the purchase price has been allocated to non-compete agreemem:s.
customer lists, contractual refationships, customer contracts and
trademarks with a known useful life. These assets have been capitalized
and are being amortized on a straight4ine basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. Kforce alsa has allocated a portion of the pur-
chase price of Hall, Kinion and Associates, Inc. (*Halj Kinion") to the
OnSeaff trade mame, and a portion of the purchase price of PCCI Hold-
ings, Inc. ("PCCI") to certain PCCI trademarks. The trade name and cer-
tain trademarks have baen determined to have an indefinite life and are
not being amortized. e

Impalr'ment of Long-Lwed Assets - _
-In accordance with SFAS 144, "Accounting for the Impan'rnent or Dis-
posal of Long-Lived Assets,” Kforce periodically reviews the carrying
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value of longived assets to determine if impairment has occurred.
Impairment losses, if any, are recorded in the period identified - Signifi-
cant judgment is required ta determine whether or not impairment has
oceurred. The determination is made by evalusting expected future
undiscounted\cash flows or the anticipated recoverability of costs
incurred and, if necessary, determining thé amount of the loss, if any,
by evaluating the fair value of the assets.

' Capltallzed Software <
Kforce purchases, and in certain cases deve|0ps and wnplemem;s
new computer software to enhance the performance of its acgounung
and operating systems. Kforce accounts for direct internal and external
costs subsequent to the prefiminary stage of the projects under the
principles-of AICPA Statement of Positian ("sQP™188-1, “Aéccdntjng far
the Costs of Computer Scftware Developed or Obtained far Internal

1 Use." Software development costs are being capitalized and classified

| . ware using the straightilipé method. Direct internal costs, such as pay-
roll and payroll-related costs, and external costs incurred during the
" development stage of each project are capitalized and classified as cap-
italized software. Kforce capitalized develdpment stage implementation
costs of $2,331, $3.134 and $876 dumng the years ended 2006,
2005, and 2004, respectively.
oo
Deferred Loan Costs’
Costs incurred to secure Kforce's Credit Facility were capitalized and
are being amortized over the terms of the related a’ér‘eement,s using
-the straight-ine methn‘d.' -
Commissions A - -
Associgtes make placements and earn commissions as a percent-
. age of actual revenue or gross profit pursuant to a calendar year basis
commission plan. The amount of commissions paid as a percentage of
revenue or gFuss profit increases as volume increases. Kforce accrues
commissions for actual revende or gross profit at a percentage‘équal
" to the percent of tital expected commissions payablé to total revenue
and gross profit for the year. ' '
Stock-Based Compensation
As of January 1, 2006, Kforce accounts for stock-based compensation
under the provisions of SFAS 123R, “Share-Based Payment” ["SFAS
~_ 123R"). This statement requires Xforce to measure the cost of employee
Services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based
on the grantdate fair value of the award [with limited exceptions). That
cost is recagnized aver the period in which the employee is reduired to
provide service in exchange for the award, which,is usually the vésting
period. No.compensation cost is recognized for equity instruments for
which employees do not render the requisite service.
. Prior to January 1, 2008, Kforce accounted for stock-based com-
- Accounting Principles Board ("APB") Opinion 25, "Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees™ ["APB 257),.and disclosed the additional compen-
.sation expense that would have been recorded if the fair value based
accounting had been used for options granted to employees and non-
employees under the provisions of SFAS 123, "Accuur{ting for Stock-
Based Compensation” [*SFAS 1237). - S, i
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as other assets and amortized over the estimated usefu! life of the soft- '

- Selfdnsurance

pensation under the intrinsic-value-based method prescribed by

L0 { . i
The table below illustrates the effects on Kforce's 2005 and 2004
net income and earnings per share had compensation cost for Kforce's

option plans tjéen determined based on the fair value at the grant
dates, as preséribed by SFAS 123. ‘
Included in the pro forma amounts below for 2004 is an expense
related to options to purchase 856 shares of common stock for which -
vesting was accelerated in Sept.ember‘ 2004 As a result of recognizing
-this expense during the period in which they weu:e accelerated, no future
expense related to these ﬂptioné wili be incurred. These options were
originally scheduled to vest during 20035 and 2006. .

~

’ - _ i o 7 Bro Forma
Years Ended December 31, 2005 ‘2004
-~ Netincome: B ’
As reported (&) . $22,321  $250M
Cornpensation expense -
(benefit] per SFAS 123, net
of related tax benefits .. (4,359) (2709

$17,962 $22,302

Pro forma net income

Earnings per share: ~ »
Basic: ' .
As reported . $0.58 $0.73
Pra forma o $0.47 7' $065
Diluted: - ) o
As reported $0.55 $0.69
Pro forma N N $0.45 $062

[allncluded in the calculation of net income is expense related to the amortization
of Kiorce's restricted stack plan. Resiricted stock amortization Is treated the
same under SFAS 123 and APB 25 and therefore, has no impact on the pro

forma net income.

i

4

" For purposes'of determining the compensation expense per SFAS 123>

in the pro forma disclosure above, the fair value of each option is estr -
mated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
with the following assumptions used for grants during the applicable
periods: dividend y|eld of 0.0%, risk-free rnterest rates of 3.9% for
options granted, a we1ghr.ed average expected mpt.lon term of 4.7 years,

and a volatility factar of 5Q%. The weighted average expected option

term and volatility were based on the historical average term of options -
and the historical volatility of Kforce stock. e

~

N .
Kforce offers employee benefit programs, including workers camperr

.sation and health insurance, ta eligible employees, for which Kforce is
self-nsured for a portidn of the cost. Kforce retains liability up to $250
for each workers’ compensaﬂon claim and up to $250 annually for each
health insurance partlclpant Self-insurance costs are accrued using
estimates to approximate the I|ab|||ty for reported claims and claims
incurred but not r‘epor't;ed ;

. .- - -
Reveﬁue Recognition” =

Net service revenues consist of search fees and flexible billings inclu-

sive of billable expenses, net of credits, discounts, rebates and fallouts.

~ N -
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\ Kfarce recognizes flexible billings based on hours worked by assigned
personnel. Search fees are recognized upan placement, net of an

allowance for “fallouts.” Fallouts are search placements that do not
complete the cnntmgency period. Contingency periods are typmally
ninety days or less. '

Revenues received as reimbursements of billable expenses are

reported gross within revenue in accordance with Emerging Issues
Task Force, Issue 01-14, “Income Statement Characterization of
Reimburseémerits Received for ‘Out-of-Pocket’ Expenses Incurred.”

. s
Other Co}nprehensive income (Loss) ‘

Clther comprehensive income (loss) is comprised of unrealized gains
and losses from changes in the fair valug of certain derivative instru-
ments that qualify far hedge accounting under SFAS 133, “Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended.

Accounting for Derivatives : ‘ .

SFAS 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activ-
ities,” s amended, establishes accounting and reporting standards for
derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embed-
ded in other contracts [collectively referred to as derivatives), and far
hedging activities. It also requires that all derivatives and hedging activ-
ities be recognized as either assets or fiabilities i the balance sheat
and be measured at fair value. Gains or losses resulting from the
changes in fair value of derivatives are recognized in net income (loss)
or recorded in other comprehenswe mcome floss), and recognized in

the statement of Dperat.lons when the hedged itemn affects earnings,

depending upan the ; purpose of the derivatives and whether thay qualify
for hedge accounting treatment. Kforce's policy is to designate at a
derivative's inception the specific assets, liabilities, or future cammit-
ments being hedged and monitor the derivative to determine if it
remains an effective hedge. Kforce does not enter into or hold deriva-

-tives for trading or speculative purposes. The fair value of Kforce's inter-

est rate swap agreement‘.s is based on dealer quates. In the unlikely
event that the cuuntarpar'ty fails to perform’ under the contract, Kforce
bears the credit risk that payments due to Kforce, if applicable, may
not be collected. - ~ .

i

Business Combinations -

Kforce accounts for acquisitions of businesses in accordance with
the requirements of SFAS 141, Business Cambmatlnns ["SFAS 141").
Pursuant to SFAS 144, Kforce utilizes the purchase method in account-
ing for acquisitions whereby- the tatal purchase price is first allocated
to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, and any remaining pur-
chase price is allocated o goodwill. Kforce recognizes intangible assets

‘ ~apart from goodwill if they srise from contractual or other legal rights,

or if they are capable of 59in__g separated or divided from the acquired

entity and sald, transferred, licensed, rented,.or ‘exchanged. Assump- .

tions and’estimates are used in determining the fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination. Valuation of
intangible assets acquired requires that we use significant judgment in
de%er[nining (i) fair value; and (i) whether such intangibles are amaortiz-
able or non-amortizable and, if the former, the period and the method

- by whictr the intangible asset will be armortized. Changes in the initial

assumptions could lead to changes in amortization charges recorded

-

in our financial statements. Additionally, estimates for purchase price

allocations may change as subsequent information becomes available.

Earnings Per Share !
Under SFAS 128, "Earnings Per Share " basic earnings (loss) per

share is computed as earnings divided by weighted average shares out- -

standing. Diluted earnings (loss) per share include the dilutive effects of

stock options and ather potentially dilutive securities such as nonvested-

stock grants and shares held in escrow related to the purchase of
VistaRMS, Inc. [Note ). N

- Options to purchase 1,201, 2,549 and 2,381 shares of cammon
stock were not included in the computations of d|luted earnlngs per
share for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2005 “and 2004,
respectively, because these options were anti-dilutive. The dilutive effect
of options to purchase 3,163, 3,639 and 4,081 shares of common
stock and 7, 305 and 318 shares of restricted stock are included in

the compuatation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended_
“December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

SFAS 153, "Exchange of non-monetary assets,” amends APB Opinion -
No. 23 to eliminate the exception for non-monetary exchanges of simf_

ilar productive assets and replaces it with a genersl exception for
exchanges of non-monetary assets that do not have commercial sub-
stance. This statemertt is effective for non-monetary asset.exchanges
occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. The adoption
of this standard did not have a material impact on Kforce's consalidated
financial statements. - .
In December of 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
["FASB"] issued 3 revised version of SFAS 123, "Share-Based Payment
("SFAS 123R"). Thls statement establishes standards for the account-
ing for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments
for goods and services, but focuses primarily an accounting far trans-
actions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based
payment transactions. This statement supersedes APB Opinion No. 25,
"Accounting for Stock Issued $o Employees,” and its related implemen-
tation guldance This statement requires a public entity to measure the
cost of emplnyee services received in exchange for an award of equity

instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award {with lim-

ited exceptions). That cost is recognized over the period in which the
employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award,
which is usually the vesting period. No compensation cost is recognized
far equity instruments for which employees do nat render the requisite
service. This statement was effective for Kforce as of January 1, 2006.
Kforce adopted SFAS 123R using the madified prospective method,
and the adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on
Kfarce's consolidated financial statements as all of Kiorce's nutstanding
stock options as of December 31, 2005 were fully vested.

 In May of 2005, FASE issued SFAS 154, *Accounting Changes and
Error Corrections.” This statermnent replaces APB Opinion 20, "Account-
ing Changes,” and SFAS 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim

Financiat Statements." This statement changes the regquirements far |

the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle,
and applies to all voluntary changes in accounting principle. This state-
ment alse applies te changes required by an accounting prenouncerrient
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in the unusuat instance that the pranouncement doss nat include spe-
. cific transition provisions. Previously, APB Opinion 20 required that
mast voluntary changes in accounting principle be recognized by includ-
ing in net income of the period of the change the cumulative effect of
changing to the new accounting principle. SFAS 154 requires retro-
spective application to prior periods’ financial statements of changes in
accounting principle, unless it is impracticable to determine either the

period-specific effects or the curmulative effect of the change. This state-

ment is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors
‘made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. The adoption
of this standard did not have a material impact on Kforce's consolidated
financial statements.
In June of 2006, FASB issued FASB Interpretation (FIN) No. 48,
"Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes™ ("FIN 48"). This interpreta-
. tion clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recegnized
in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS 108.
This interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a
tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax retum. Under this
interpretation, theevaluation of a tax position is a two-step process.

" First. the enterprise determines whether it is more likely than not that

~a tax position will be sustained upon examination, based on the technical
merits of the position. The second step is measuring the benefit to be
recorded from tax positions that meet the more-ikelythan-nat recogni-
tion threshald, whereby the enterprise determines the largest amount
of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized
upon ultimate settiement, and recognizes that benefit.in its financial
staternents. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecagnition, classifica-
tion, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure
and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after

December 15, 2006. Management has completed an initial evaluation -

of the effect of adopting FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, and determined
the adoption of FIN 48 is not expected to have a material impact. on
Kforce's consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In September of 2006, FASB issued SFAS 157, "Fair Value Measure-
ments” (“SFAS 1577). This statement defines fair value, establishes a
framewark for measuring fair value in generally accepted accof.mr.ing
principles (GAAP), and expands disclosures about fair value measure-
ments. This statement applies under other accounting pronouncements
that require ar permit fair value measurements, FASB having previously
concluded in those accounting pronouncements that fair value is the
relevant measurement attribute. Accordingly, this statement does not
require any new fair value measurements. However, for some entities,

the application of this statement will change current practice. SFAS 157 :

is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years.
Kfarce is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on its findncial
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

In.December of 2006, FASB issued SFAS 158, "Employers’ Accounting
for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans-an amend-
ment of FASB Statements No. B7, 88. 106, and _’]32[“]' {"SFAS 1587
This statement requires Kforce to recognize the overfunded or under-
fundéd status of a defined benefit postretirement plan (other than a mul-
tiemployer plan) as an asset or ligbility in its statement of financial pbsition
and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the
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cﬁanges occur through comprehensive iNCOME. This statement also
requires Kforce to measure the funded status of a plan es of the date of
its year-and statement of financial posir,inr{ with.imited exceptions. Under ..
this statement, Kforce will continue to apply the Provisions of SFAS 87,
Employers’ Accounting for Pensions” ["SFAS 877}, and SFAS 88, “Employ-
ers' Accounting for Settlements and Curtailment of Defined Benefit Pen-

sion Plans and for Termination Benefits” ("SFAS B8', in measuring plan

assets and benefit obligations and in determining net periodic pension
costs. Employers with publicly traded equity securities, such as Kforce,
are required to initially recognize the funded status of a defined benefit
postretirement plan and provide the required disclosures 8s of the end
- of the fiscal year ending after December 15, 20086. The adoption of SFAS
158 did not have a material impact on Kforce's consolidated financial
statements far the year ended December 31, 2006 due to the fact that
Kfarce's Supplement Executive Retirement Plan was adopted on the last

" day of the year. However, the adoption of SFAS 158 may materially impact

hY

Kfarce's consolidated financial statements in future years to the extent
that Kforce has an overfunded or underfunded pension liabilicy.

2. FIXED ASSETS
Maijor classifications of fixed assets_and related.asset lives are
summarized as follows:

‘

- December 31, Useful Life 2006 2005
Land $ 1,310 $ 1310
Furniture and equipment . 57 years 7,558 5434
Computer equipment 3-5 years 2,241 1,433
Leasehold improverments 3-15 years 5,268 4267
Capital leases 3 years 8,268 5837

\ 24,645 18,281

Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization . 12,035 8133
$12.610 $10148

Kforce pur‘chased fixed assets totaling $3.552 and $1,058, and
invested in assets under capital leases of $3,736 and $3,588, during
20086 and 2005. Deprecia;.ion and armortization exbense during 2006,
2005 and 2004 was $4,25%, $2.035 and $2.300, respectively. Kforce
recagnized losses an the sale or disposal of assets of $24 for 20086,
gains on the sale or disposal of assets of $38 in 2005 and losses on
the sale or disposal of assets of $224 for the year ended 2004. ~ ~

Land consists of a parcel of property adjacent to the site of the
; .

corporate headquarters building,

3. INCOME TAXES S .
The provision (benefit] for income taxes consists of the following:

Years Ended December 37, 2006 2005 - 2004
Current: ' ;
Federal $ 1,665 $ (22318 265
State - 319 123 (13
Deferred 19,486 14945 5,461
Decrease in valuation allowance “(a883) - (18.250)

$20,487 $14,845 ${13.537)

.o
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The provision [benefit] for income taxes shown ahove varied from the
statutory Federal income tax rates for thaose periads as follows::

Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
Federal income tax rate - 35.0% -350% 350%
State income taxes, . . :

net of Federal tax effect 46 ~ 48 (2.4)
Non-deductible compensation” — - 106
Non-deductible meals :

and entertainment 0.7 01 2.6
Alternative Mlmmum Tax v — . [OB) 2.3
Other ol — 08 1.7
Deferred tax asset T . )

valtuation allowance {1.6) T —  [1B878]"
Effective tax rate 38.7%

\

> 38.8% (11B.00%

Deferred income tax assets and lisbilities ar’e.comﬁr‘ised of the following:

B

- 2006

4

. Decernber 31, 2005
Defer‘red taxes, current:
Assets )
Allowance for doubtful accounts $1,134 $ 2144
Accrued lisbilities 3,377 2,539
Federal net operating . . .
- loss carryforward 2,063 10628
State net operating . B ) :
loss carryforward 1,845 1856
Other assets  ~ 1.162 305
> 9,581 17,272
Liabiities: e
- Prepaid expenses (689) (595)
~ Current deferred tax asset, W
net of current deferred tax liabilities 8,892 16677
Valuation allowance - — (884). .
Net current deferred tax asset ~  B,892 15,793
Deferred taxes, norcurrent:t
Assets; | B
- Deferred compensation 4,701 . 3742«
Federal net operating .
.~ loss carryforward 3,403 5,449
N State net operating - )
loss carryfnrward —_ 671
Other - - 279 873
- - - 8,383 10,735
Liabilities: B ’
Depreciation of fixed assets [2,853) (2.802)"°
Armortization of goodwill and - ) C
. intangible assets (6,059) (3.000)
‘ s ~ [8,912) (5,802)
Non-current deferred tax (liability) ’ .
asset, net of non-current ’
deferred tax assets ) [(529) 4833
Valuation allowance / (475). (482)
" Net non-current deferred
tax (lability) assat (1.004) 4,451

Net deferred tax asset - -

$ 7,888 $20244

At Decernber 31, 2008, Kforce had Federal net operating toss car-
ryforwards [ NOLs") of approximatety $15.837 related to the recor‘dmg
of Hall Kinion Federal NOLs, which expire in varying amounts through

2024. Further, Kfarce has approximately $33.414 of state tax NOLs at.

December 31, 20086, which will be carried forward to be offset against
future state taxable ihcome. The state tax NOLs expire in varying
amounts through 2022, _

Kforce incurred NOLs for both Federal and state income tax pur-
poses in 2004, 2002 and 2001. For accounting purpdses, the esti
mated tax effects of such NOLs, plus other timing differences, result in
current and non-current deferred tax assets. However, a determination
must be made that it is “more likely than not” that the NOLs will be uti-
lized for tax purposes, or valuation aflowances must be established to

offset such assets. At December 31, 2002, a "more likely than-not”_

conclusion could not be reached, and the deferred tax assets were fully
resarved. Kforce had net income during 2003, and portions of the

deferred tax assets were recognized by reducing such assets and the
related valuation sllowances by $2,200), instead of providing any 2003

income tax expense qphér' than certain state tax expense for which cor-
responding state tax carryforwards were not avaitable. In 2004, Kforce
recognized a tax benefit of $13,537, which consisted of the reversal of
the valuation allowance totallng $19.250, net of current and deferred
tax expense of $5,713. During 2008, Kforce recognized a tax benefit
totating $883 related to the reversal of a valuation allowance based
upon Kfarce receiving IRS approval of a tax method change. Kforce con-

. tinuas to carry a $475 valuation allowance at December 31, 2006, off-

seiting certain deferred tax assets acquired from Hall Kinion far which
a "'more likely than not" conclusion for tax purposes could not be
reached. Therefare, if this portion of the valtration allowance is reversed

at & future date, the related tax benefit will be recorded as an offset to’

goodwill previously recognized in conjunction with this acﬁuisition.'AIsU
in 2004, Kforce reversed $21,841 of valuation allowances related to
deferred tax assets recorded in conjunction with the Hall Kinion acqui-

sitian. The reversal of these valuation allowances has beén recorded as

an offset to Goodwill recognized in this acquisition. ;o

Kforce is periodically subject to US. Internal Revenue Service audits far
varfous tax years, Kforce is also periodically subject to state and other local
income tax audits for various tax years. At December 31, 2008, Kforce
Government Solutions, Inc. (fermerty known as PCC), a \Hrholly-ogvned sub-
sidiary of Kforce, had ongoing sudits being conducted by the states of New
Jersey and New York As of March 2, 2007, no final determination has
been made in these audits. During 2006, Kforce Government Solutions,
Inc. also had an ongoing audit being conducted by the IRS related to its
December 31, 2004 Federal income tax return, On January 31, 2007,
this audit was Setiled with no changes to the previously filed 2004 tax
return. During 20086, a Kforce Inc. income tax audit for the state of Texas
was concluded with no material adverse assessments.

.

-
\
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4. OTHER ASSETS
1

December 31, . 2006 2005
Cash surrender value of life

insurance policies (Note 9} $12,393 $10831
Capitalized software,

net of amortization 8,431 7,592
Prepaid rent—headguarters, - -

net of amortization 963 1073
Deferred merger and acquisition costs —_ 198
Deferred loan costs, net of amortization 697 242
Escrow deposits ' 10,000 -
Other non-current assets 509 12

$32,993 320248

Cash surrender value of life insurance policies relates to policies
maintained by Kforce that could be used to fund obligations under the
Deterred Compensation Plan {Note S).

Kforce purchased capitalized software for 3854 and $2,911 during
2008 and 2005, respectively. Accurmulated amartization on capitalized
software was $6.788 and $4,508 as of December 31. 2006 and 2005,
respectively. In addition, Kforce capitalized costs related to software devel
aped for internal use totaling $2,331 and $3134 in 2006 and 2005,
respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2006, Kforce capitak
ized $240 of interest costs incurred in conjunction with sofoware devel-
ppment. Amortization expense on capitalized software during 2008,
2005 and 2004 was $2.342, $1.459 and $748, respectively.

In sccordance with SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” Kforce periodically reviews the carrying
value of long-lived assets to determine if impairment has occurred.
During the year ended December 31, 2004, it was determined that
time entry software purchased but not implemented by Kfarce could
not be customized to meet Kforce's requirements. Based on this deter-
minatian Kforce recognized an impairment loss of $498 which
included 305 in capital software costs and $183 of maintenance
costs. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2005, it was
der.ermmed that there were no impairments, The impairment losses
are recorded as a cnmponent of selling, general and administrative
expenses in the accompanymg Cohsolidated Statements of Operations
and Comprehensive income (Loss). )

As part of the agreement with the landlord of Kforce's corporate
headglarters, Kforce was reqmred to prepay lease costs relsting to
building upgrades above a base amount. This amournt is being amortized
over the 15 year term of the lease.

Deferred merger and acquisition costs of $198 were capitalized in
connection with Kforce's agreement to acquire PCCl as of December 31,
2005 [Note B). The cost deferred and capitalized as of December 31

) 2(:05 was recorded as part of the purchase price of PCCL

Deferred loan costs consist of amounts capitalized in conjunctian
with Kforce's Seventh Amendment to the Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement dated as of Novernber 7, 2005 and Kforce's Second
Amended and Hestated Credit Agreement dated as of October 2,
200B. Accumulated amortization on deferred loan costs was $82 and
$8 as of Oecember 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Amortization
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expense on deferred Inan costs was %74, 5287 and $336 in 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively.

Escrow deposits above consist of amounts remaining in escrow
related to the purchase of PCCl and Bradson Corporation (“Bradson” il
(Note B). .

5. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In accordance with SFAS 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”
Kforce completed annual tests for gaodwill impairment as required and
found no impairment existed at December 31, 2006, 2005 or 2004.

Kforce utilizes two primary methods in its annual assessment of
goodwill, a discounted cash flow method and a market approach (the
guideline public company method), and considers the results of each to
value its reporting units. The discounted cash flow method is an income
approach whereby the value of the reparting unit is determined by dis-
counting each reporting unit's cash flow at an approprigte discount
rate. In the most recent assessment of goodwil, Kforce utilized
weighted average costs of capital ranging fram 134 to 15.9 percent,
costs of equity ranglng from 13. g to 16.2 percent, and an after tax
cost of debt af 3.9 percent in order to value each of its reporting units
under the discounted cash flow method. The guideline public company
method is an approach that applies pricing mulr.ipleé derived from com-
parable publicly traded guideline companias to the respective reporting
unit to determine its value. In the most recent assessment of goodwil,
Kforce utilized invested capital/ revenue multiples ranging from A0 1o
1.80, and invested capital /EBITDA multiples ranging from 400 to
10.00 in order to value each of its reporting units under the guideline
public company methad. ’ -

In accordance with SFAS 141, "Business Cnmblnauons Kforce assigned

$3180 to customer relationships, $894 to government contracts, $180

to trademarks with known useful ives, $3,220 to trademarks with indefi
nite lives, $105 to knowledge bases and $34 refated to non-compete
agreements in the acquisiion of PO {Note 6). Kforce has also preliminarily
assigned $11,960 to customer relationship and contracts, $182 to nor
cormpete agreements, and $54 to employment agreements related to the
acguisition of Bradson (Note 6). In 20015, Kforce assigned $2,.800 to cus-
tomer list intangible assets and $200 related to NON-GOMpELE agreements
in the acquisition of Vista (Note B). In 2004, Kforce assigned $100001w
customer list intangible assets and $870 related to the OnStaff trade
name in the acquisition of Hall Kinion (Note B). The remaining value of intan-
gible assets relates to customer lists and non-compete agreements
acquired during 2001 are fuly amortized. Kforce utilized an income

approach to value the above intangible assets that involved discounting the

expected cash flows resulting fraom the utilization of the assets to their
present value using the appropriate discount rate. In the above valuations, .
Kforce utiized weighted average costs of capital ranging from 13.4 to 152
percent, capital costs of working capital of 3.9 to 4.0 percent, capital costs -
of other tangible assets of 3.8 to 90 percent and capital costs of various
|nr.ang|b!e assets of 13.4 to 16.0 percent. Accumulated amortization on
intangible assets from acquisitions was H11, (086 and $6.211 as of Decern-
her 31, 2006 and 2005. respectively. Amortization expense on intangible
assets from acquisitions for 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $4.885, $3,502
and $1.836. respectively. For existing intangible assets from acquisitions,
amortization expense for 2007, 2008, 2008, 2010 and 2011 will be
$5603, $3.901, $2063, $1665 and $1257. respectively.




—

The following table contains a disclosure of changes in the carrying amount of goodwill in total and for each reporting unit for the years ended
Becember 31, 2004 through 2006; ‘

Finance and Health and

Technology Accounting Life Sciences Government Total
Balance as of December 31, 2003 $ 36680 $ 12,579 $ 12,529 5 — $ 61758
Gootiwill acquiréd durlng the year—HaII Kinion 39,302 7253 - - 46,555
Balance as of December 31, 2004 75992 19.832 12,529 - 108,353
Goodwill acquired during the year—Vista N 16,442 - - - 16,442
Adjustment to Hall Kinion Goodwill (discussed in Note B) 177 32 - — 209
Balance as of December 31, 2003 82,611 12.864 12,529 - 125,004
Goodwill acquired during the year—PCC 32,814 - —_ 7.408 40,222
Goodwill acquired during the year—Bradson — —_ — 51,908 51,908
Adjustment to Vista Goodwill tdiscussed in Note 5) 5,205 —_ — — 5,205 .
Adjustment to Hall Kinian Goodwill [discussed in Note & (32) (5) — —_ (37)
Balance as of December 31, 20086 $130,598 $19,859 $12,529 $59,316 $222,302

6. ACQUISITIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006
Acquisition of PCCi Holdings, Inc.

On January 31, 2008, Kforce acquired PCC Holdings, Inc., pursuant to
an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) by and
among Kforce, Trevose Acquisition Carporation, a Delaware corporation
and a wholly—owned subsidiary of Kforce ("Merger Sub™), PCC Holdings,
Inc., a Delaware corporar.ron HIG. Pinkartan, Inc., a Cayrnan company, in
fts capacity as Bepresentative, Wiliarm D. Pinkerton and Richard J. Gluigley:
Under the terms of the Merger Agreement. Kforce acquired all of the out-
standing stock of PCC for epproximately $60,000 (the “Purchase Price”)
paid in cash at closing, subject-to certain adjustments as provided for in

the Merger Agreement. On the closing date, Kforce placed into escrow

$6,000 of the total Purchase Price ta secure PCCl's indernnification obi-
gations, and to satisfy certain adjustrnents to the Purchase Price. During
the quarter ended September 30, 2006, to satisfy adjustments to the
purchase price, 8371 of escrow was returmed to Kforce, and $629 was
released to PCC! from escrow, as provided for in the Merger Agreement
discussed above. The remaining $5,000 of the escrow deposit is available
to satisfy indemnification obligations of PCC) until the expiration of the
escrow period an March 31, 2007, and has been included in other assets,
net an the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated batance
sheet as of December 31, 20068,

PCCI was a privately held company based in Trevose, Pennsylvania
that, through its whally-owned subsidiaries [primarily Pinkerton Cam-

. puter Consultants, Inc.), produced revenue of approximately $95 million

in technology staffing and the Federal government {T services sector
during the 12 months ended dJanuary 31, 2006. Approximately 35% of
that revenue was generated in the government sector. As a result of
the above acquisition, Kforce expanded its presence in technology
staffing in both the Federal government and commercial sectors. The
results of PCCl's operations since the date of acquisition have been
included in Kiorce's consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2Q06.

“The following table summarizes the total purchase price, net assets
acquired and intangfble essets recorded in conmunction with the acquisition;

340,222

Goodwill

Acquisition intangibles 4,393
Trademarks 3.220
Net assets acquired 11,311
Total purchase price’ $59,146

The following table summarizes the estimated fair vatues aof the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition;

Accounts receivahle $18,4924
Cther assets 1521
Income taxes receivahle 3135
Total assets acquired . 23,080
Current liabilities 10,755
Income taxes payable B42
Deferred tax liabiity o172
Total liabilities assumed 11.769
Net assets acquired $11.311

Based on an anslysis completed in accordance with SFAS 141, $3.220
of the excess purchase price has been alfocated to trademarks that are
not being smortized, $2,230 of the excess purchase price has been allo-
cated to government contractual relationships and is being amortized
aver a useful life of 5 years, $350 of the excess purchase price has been
allocated to commercial contractual relationships and is being amortized
over a useful life of 4 years, $894 of the excess purchase price has been
allocated to contracts with a weighted useful lives ranging from one
month to five years, $180 of the excess purchase price has been allo-
cated to trademarks with a definitive useful life being amortized over 18
months, 3105 of the excess purchase price has been allocatad to knowl-
edge bases that are being amortized aver 12 months and $34 of the
excess purchase price has been allocated to non-compete .agreements
that are being amortized over a useful life of 3 years.
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The $40.222 of remaining excess purchase price has been

assigned to goodwill. 532,814 of goodwili has been allocated to the -

Technalogy reporting unit and $7,408 of goodwill has been allocated
to the Government reporting unit. This goodwill is not deductible for
tax purposes.
Acquisition of Bradson Corporation -

On Octaber 1, 2006, Kiorce entered inko-and closed a Stock Purchase
Agreement {the "Stock Purchase Agreement”) by and among Kforce.

Bradson Carporation ("Bradson”), Kforce Government Holdings Inc., a8

Florida corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kforce ("KGH"),
Ronald M. Bradley, individuatly and on behaif of the cther shareholders,
Barbara J. Lewis and David M. Halstead.

Bradson was a privately held company based in Ar-llngwn Virginia, and
has been 8 prime contractor of Finance and Accounting professional
services to the Federal government for over 20 years. Bradson's primary
customers include the Department of Defense and the Department of

Homeland Security. < -

“Pursuant to the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement, KGH‘
acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Bradson for a purchase

price of $73, CDD {the "Purchase Price’), which was subject to Bradson
delivering a minimurn of $4,000 in working capital at the time of closing.
The cash-cunsideration paid by KGH was comprised of Kforce's cash on
hand and borrowings under Kforee's credit facility. On October 2, 2008,
KGH placec] into escrow $5,000 of the tatal Purchase Price to secure
Bradson's indemnification obligations, and to satisfy certain adjustments
" tothe Pumhase Price. KGH, Bradson, and the shareholders have made
cer‘tam c:usbomar'y representations, warranties and covenant.s in the Stock
Purchase Agreemenr. Kforce is a party to the St.nck Purghase Agreement
as a guarantor of the performance of all obligations of KGH, including all
obligations to make the payments of the Purchase Price to the sharehald-
ers. The results of Bradson's aperations since the date of acquisition have
heen included in Kforce's consolidated financial statements for the fiscal
-year ended December 31, 2006. '

The following table summarizes the total purchase price, net assets
acquired and intangible assets recorded in_conjunction with the acquisition:

Goodwil $51,908
Acquisition intangibles i P 12196
Net assets acquired ' - - 4190
Total purchase price o7 4 - $68,294

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition:

Cash s 907

. Accounts receivable 4,745
Furniture and equipment 174
Other assets ) N 389
Total assets acquired . 8,215
Current liabilities 1936
Long-term liabilities , .- - 18

™ Accrued taxes 71
Total liabilities assumed ™ 7, C 2025
Net assets acquired ) . ‘ $4180
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Prefiminartly, $11,960 of the excess purchase price has been allo-
cated to customer relationships and contracts that are being amortized

aver a weighted avérage useful fife of 10 years, $182 of the-excess”

purchase price has been allocated to non-compete agreements that
are being amortized over a weighted average useful life of § years, and
$54 of the excess purchase price has been allocated to an employment
agreemenﬁ'wit.h a useful life of 2 years. ron
The $51,908 of remaining excess pﬁrchase price.has been assigned
to goodwill. This goodwill has been allocated to the Government report-
ing unit. This goodwill is deductible for-tax purposes:-The final aflocation
of purchase price to the acquired assets and liabilities has not been

~ completed, as Kforce has not completed the valuation of intangible -

assets acquired.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
VistaRMS, Inc. '

‘On February 1, 2005, Kforce completed the acquisition of substan-

tially all of the assets of VistaRMS; Inc. ("Vista"), a privately-held company
pased in Herndon, Virginia, in exchange for 2,348 shares of Kforce
comimon stock, This transaction was accounted for using the purchase
method. The results of Vista's operations since the date of acquisit.iori

_ have been included in Kforce's consnhdar.ed financial statements. Vista

. had produced revenue of approximately $50, CO‘J in technotogy staffing
over the 12 months prior to the acquisition.

As consideration for the purchase, Kforce issued 2,348 shares of-
“Kfarce stock of which 1,233 were hetd in escrow under the terms of

the agreement. The Kfarce stock was valued at 8 price of $11.57 per
share, the average market price of the shares from the period 5 days
hefore and after the date the agreement was signed and announced.
At December 31, 2005, 1584 shares were issued under the terms
of the agreement, with a total addition to equity of $18,324, and 450
shares rermained in escrow. Kforce also incurred $438 in transaction

costs, which includes $179 of transaction costs paid in 2004, and

assumed nat liabilities of $663. On February 2, 2008, 225 of the 430
shares remaining in escrow were issued under the terms of the agree-
ment resulting in a $2,602 incraase in gondwm On August 1. 2006,
the remaining shares in ESCFOW Were issued under' the terms of the
agreement resulting in a8 $2,603 increase in goodwill.

The following table summarizes the total purchase price, net
assets acquired and intangible assets r‘ecordqu in conjunction with
the acquisition: - .- }

$23,526

" Equity issued
Transaction costs - T 458 -
Total purchase pric_a‘ £23,.984
Goaodwiil \ $21,647
Customer lists 2.800
Noncompete agreements 200
Net liabilties acquired (BB3)
Total purchase price %23,984

-




-

¢

C .
- . Accounts receivable

-

— The following table.summarizes the estimated fair values of the

assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition;

$10.031

Other assets 75
" Total assets acquired - 1008
Current liabilities . - : o 5347
Debt - 2467
Long-term !|ab|[n;|es 2855
Tatal liabilities assumed” T " 107689
'Net liabilities assumed s $ 663

Inciuded in current and lang -term liabifities abave are a net deferred
tax ||ab|l|ty of $1.2 million and a Federal tax liability of $2.3 million r.hat
were acquired in conjunction with the acquisition. -

Based on an analysis' completed in accordafce with SFAS 141,
$2.800 of the excess purchase price has been allocated to customer
lists and contracts that are being a‘Fnom‘;ag‘ aver a weighted average

- useful life of 4 years; and $200 of the excess purchase price has been

allocated to non-compete agreament.s that are being amortized over a
weighted average useful life of 5 years. .

The $21647 of remaining excess purchase price has been assigned
to goodwill. This goodwill has been allocated to the Technalogy reporting

unit: This goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 -

‘Hall, Kinion & Associates Inc.

On June 7, 2004, Kforce scguired 100% of the putstanding common

+ stock of Hall, Kinion and Assamat;es Inc. and.its subsidiaries (*Hall Kmuon ).

This transaction was accaunted for using the purchase mathod, Tha
results of Hall Kinion's operations since the date of acquisition have
been included in Kforce's consolidated financial staternents, Hall Kinion
sp‘ecialized in providing technology and finance and accounting related
talent on a temporary and permanent basis-to its customers primarily
inthe Unlted States. As a result of this acquisition, Kforce expanded its
market prasenca by adding 18 ofﬁces not including those offices
already combined .with existing Kforce offices. The acquisition also
expanded Kforce'é service offerings in technology and finance and
.accounting in certain market Segments

-
- As consideration for the purchase ‘of the commaon st:ock Kforce

issued 5,742 shares of Kforce stock at a pI"ICE of $8.95 a share, the
market price of the shares on the date of issuance, with a total addition
to equity of $51,388. Kforce also incurred $13,899 in transaction
costs, which includes approximately $1,459 of transaction costs paid
in 2003. Additionally, Kforce assumed net assets of $10,152 and
bought out potential future earnouts related to OnStaff for $2,500.
Kforce recorded an adjustment to the assets ‘acquired of $209 in
2005 due to changes to the net deferred tax assets realized in 2003
increasing geodwill by $208. Kferce recorded an adjustment to the
assets acquired of $37 in 2008 due to changes to the net deferred tax
assets realized in 2006 decreasing goodwill by $37.

~

The following table summarizes the total purchase price, net assets
acquired and intangible assets recorded in conjunction with the acquisition:

“The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition:

Cash . . $ 2827
Other current. assets 19,895
Furniture and eguipment - " 5BB

.. Other assets ) 21,685
Total assets acquired 45,003
Current liabilities 14,233
‘Long-term debt , © 10638
Other long-term liabilities - 9841
Total liahilities assumed 34812
Net assets acquired

Included in other current assets and other assets above is a net
deferred tax asset of $23,266 that was acquired in conjunction with
the acquisition.

Based on an analysis completed in accordance with SFAS 141, “Busi-
ness Combinations” {"SFAS 141"}, $10,000 of the excess purchase price
was allocated to acquired intangible assets and is included in intangible
assets, netin the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Such value
is assigned to customer lists and contracts that are amortized over a
wmghted average useful life of 4 years. An additional $870 was assigned
to the OnStaff trade name, which is also included in lntang|ble assets,
net, in the accornpanying consolidated balance shest. This asset has been
determined to have an indefinite life and is not being amortized.

The $48,727 of remaining excess purchase price was assigned to
goadwill. This goodwill has heen allocated to the Technology and
Finance and Accounting reporting units. This goodwill is not deduct:ble
for tax purposes. . .

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated financia! information
for Kforce glves effect to the acquisitions of Bradson, PCGI and Vista as
if they had acclrred on January 1, 2005, These unaudlted pro forma
results have been prepared for comparative purposes on!y and do not

$51.388

Equity issued

Transaction costs 13,900
Future earnouts--OnStaff . 12,500
Total purchase price 567,788
Goodwill $46,727
Customer lists 10,000 .
Trade name N - 870
Net assets acquired 10181 -
‘Total purchase price $67,7688

$10191.

¢

y

\

purport to be indicative of tha results of operations that actuatly would

have resulted had the acquisitions occurred an the date indicated, or
that may resutt in the future.
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2006 2005

Revenues $968,642 $923108

Net income $ 38,212 $ 33063

Basic income per share - $0.95 $0.85

Diluted income per share $0.91 $0.81

Basic shares outstanding 40,189 38,762

‘Diluted shares outstanding 42,012 40,850

7. CREDIT FACILITY

On Octaber 2, 2006, Kforce entered into a Second Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement, with a syndicate led by Bank of America,
N.A. (the “Credit Facility"). Under the Credit Facility, Kfarce incressed its
indebtedness under its existing $100,000 revolving credit facility.
Kforce's maximum borrowings under the Credit Facility are now limited
to $140,000, including a revolving loan tranche of up to $100,000 (the
_"Revolving Loan Amount”], an additional revolving loan wranche (the "Addi-
tional Availability Amount”) of up to $25,000, and & $15,000 sub-imit
far latters of credit. Borrowings under the Credit Facility are limited to
B5% of eligible accounts receivable, plus the lesser amount of $25,000
or 20% af the net amount of efigible accounts receivable, minus certain
minimum avaitability reserves. Outstanding borrowings under the Revolv-
ing Loan Amount bear interest at a rate of LUBOR plus 1.25% or Prime,
and outstanding borrowings under the Additional Availability Amount
bear interest at a rate of LISOR plus 3% or Prime plus 1.25%. Letters
of credit issued under the Credit Facility require Kforce to pay a fmnt.ing
fee equal to 125% of the amount of each letter of credit issued, plus
1,25% per annum of the totsl letters of credit outstanding. To the extent
that Kforce has unused availability under the Credit Facifity, an unused
line fee is required to be paid equal to 0.25% of the average unused bal-
ance on a monthly basis. Kforce was required to pay a closing fee of

$372 upon entering into the Credit Facility, incurred legal fees of $157-

related to entering the Credit Facility and is also required to pay an
annual administrative fee of $62.5. Borrowings under the Credit Facility
are secured by substantially all of the assets of Kfarce. uUnder the Credit
Facility, Kforce is required to meet certain minirmum availability and fixed
charge coverage ratio requirements and is prohibited from making any
dividend distributions. The Additional Availability Amount is reduced by
$1.250 per month beginning November 2008, until the Additional Avail-
ahility Amount. is entirely eliminated, which will result in its glimination no
later than June 2008 The balance outstanding under the Additiona!
Availability Amount as of December 31, 2006 was $20,000. $10,000
of this balance is classified as a current liability in the accompanying

consolidated balance sheet-as Kforce transferred $10,000 of the bal- .-
ance outstanding under the Additional Availability Amount to the

Revolving Loan Amount on January 2, 2007,

On June 23, 2005, our Board of Directors increased its authoriza-
tion for open mafket, repurchases of commuon stock by $20,000 to
$135,000. At December 31, 2006, we had repurchased 20,733
shares for $120,230 under this plan. 385 shares have been repur-
chased during 2006 for $5.373. Therefore, $14.770 was available
under the current boerd authorization as of December 31, 2006. Addi-
tional stock repurchases could have a material impact on the cash flow
requirements for the next twelve months.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility were $86.435 and $35,000
as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. ~
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8. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

2006

December 31 2005
Deferred compensation T .

plan liability (Note 9) $11.,230 $8.902
Accrued rent 2,454 2,783
Accrued alternative long-

term incentive liability B67 .-
Corporate income tax

payable-Federal non-current 586 1472
Supplemental executive ,

retirement pian liability (Note 9) 4 -

$12,.857

$15,141

Kforce has a non-qualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to
which eligible Kforce management and highly compensated key employ-
ges may elect to defer part of their compensation to later years. These
amounts, which are classified as other Iong'termkliabilities, are payable
upon retirement or termination of employment (Note 9].

On December 31, 2006, Kforce implemented a Supplemental Exec-
utive Retirernent Plan [the “SERP™) far certain named executive officers.
The costs for SERP are calculated based on actuarial calculations using
the key assumptions discussed in Note 8.

On February 22, 2006, Kforce granted to certain members of senior
management an alternative long -term incentive totaling $1,744 (the
“ALTY). The terms of the ALTI grant state that the ALTI vests fully on
January 1, 2008, and the total ALT| shall increass or decrease in value
equal to the increase or decrease in the price of Kforce's common

. stock over the period from January 1, 2006 to January 1, 2008. In

addition, if the average closing price of Kforce's common stock during
the period of January 1, 2006 to December 31, 2006, had been below
$6.70, the full amount of the ALTI would have been forfeited. During
2006, the avérage closing price of Kforce's comman stock was not
below $6.70. As a result, none of the ALT| was forfeited. Kforce has val-
ued this grant using a Monte Cario simulation st $1,882 as of Decem-
ber 31. 2006, and is amartizing this value over the vesting period of
February 22, 2008 to January 1. 2008. The Monte Carlo simulation
was computed using a risk free interest rate of 501% and a volatility
factor of 42.78%. Accordingly, for the year ended December 31, 20086,
Kiorce recorded $B67 of compensation expense related to the ALTI.
Going forward, the fair value of the ALT! determined under the Mante
Carlo simulation will be updated quarterly, and remaining amaortization
expense will be adjusted for changes in the value of the ALTL

Kforce has accrued the net present value of rent for the minimum
requirad lease payments on vacant properties and the net rent payable
after sublease payments on sublet properties, at interest rates of 4%
to 9%. In addition to the non-current amounts of $252 and $919 for
2006 snd 20035 included ‘above, respectively, net lease payments
scheduled within the next 12 months of $848 and $1.016 for 2006
and 2005, respectively. have been included in accounts payable and
other current liabilities. | : - .




Future minimum tease payments and receipts for accelerated leases
and subleases under non-cancelable operating leases are summarized

as follc;ws:

2007 2008
Lease payments $1.723 $721
Sublease receivables 875 425
Net leases payable N ‘ $ 848 $296

»

- Expenses of $0, $64 and $684 were recognized during 2008,
2005 'and 2004, respectively, to record accrued rent related to
vacated or subleased properties. The straight-lining of escalating rent

)

payrnen_r.é relat\es primarily to Kforce's corporate headquarters facility
lease (Note 12]. These expenses are included in SGSA.
8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS T

401(k} Savings Plans N ol

Kforce has a qualified defined contribution 407 (k) plan (the "Kforce
401 (k) Plan’}-covéring substantially all employees. Employer matching con-
tributions are discretionary and are funded annually as approved by the
Board of Directors. Kforce has accrued 8 match of $764 for the plan
year ended December 31,2006. A match of $813 was made in 2006
for the plan year ended Décember 31, 2005, A match of $543 was made
in 2005 for the plan year ended December 31, 2004. A match of $475
was made in 2004 for the plan year ended December 31, 2003.
Assets of the Kforce 401(k} Plan are held in trust for the sole benefit
of employees

“ At December 31. 20086, 2005, and 2004, the Kforce 401(k) Plan
held 555, 660, and 862 shares, respectively, of Kforce's stack, repre-
senting approximately 1, 3B%. 1.71% and 2.31 % respectively, of
Kforce's outstanding shares.

Kforceihas an additional qualified defined contribution 4D’|[k] Plan
covering employees of Bradson Corporation (the “Bradson 401(k]
Ptan”], which was acquired by Kforce on October 1, 2006. Kforce has
accrued a match of $158 far the plan year ended December 31, 2006.
Assets of the Bradson 401 (k) Plan are held in trust for the sole benefit
of employees.

Employee Stock. Purchase Plan”-

Kforce has an Employee Stack Purchase Plan which allows all employ-
ees to purchase stock at a B% discount from the market price of
Kforce's common stock at the end of the three month purchase period
and without commissions on the pur‘chases"Employees are eligible to
par‘tlmpate in the plan as of the next plan enroliment date following their
date of hire. Ouring 2008, 2005, and 2004, respectively, Kforce issued
172, 128, and 121 shares of common stock, at an average purchase
price of $9.30, $7.57 and $6.18 per share, puréuant to the plan. These
shares were transferred to the plan from Kforce's treasury stock. Of
the 172 shares issued in 2006, Kforce issued 104 of the shares at an
average price of $7.21, 22 shar‘esr' at an average price of $12.11, 18

shares at an average price of $14.71 and 27 shares at an average
price of $11.33. Of the 128 shares issued in 2005, Kforce issued 55
of the shares at an avérage price of $7.98 and 73 shares at an aver-
age price of $7.19. Of the 121 shares issued in 2004, Kforce issued

" B9 of the shares at an average price of $4.34 and 52 shares at an
average price of $8.02. n January 2007, Kforce issued 26 shares at, -

an average price of $11.56, related to employee contributions made

* during the last three months of 2006.

Deferred Compensation Plan
Kforce has a nonqualified deferred cormpensation plan pursuant to

defined by IRS regulations, may elect to defer part of their compensa-
tion to later years. These amounts are classified as accounts payable
and other accrued liabilities if due to be paid within the next, year or as
other long-term liahilities if due to be paid out after the next yeér* or
upon. retirement or termination of emplayment. At December 31, 2008
and 20083, amounts included in accounts payable and other accrued lia-
bilities related to the deferred compensation plan totaled $428. and

$1,248, respectively. Amounts included in other longterm liabilities

related to the deferred compensation plan totaled $11,230 and
$8.802 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Kforce has
insured the lives of the participants in the deferred compensation plan to
assist in the funding of the deferred compensation liability. The cash sur-

render value of these Kforce-owned life insurance policies, $12,393 and .

$10,831 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, are classified
as other assets (Note 4). Compensation expense of $256, $700, and

T %731 was recogrized far the plan for the years ended December 31,
20086, 2005, and 2004, respectively. Kforce has accrued a discretionary |

matching contribution of $309, which represents 10 percent of contri-
butions, for the plan year ended December 31, 2006. A match of $139

‘was made by Kforce in 2006 for the plan year ended December 31,

2005. A match of 5161 was made by Kforce in 2005 for the plan year
ended December 31, 2004. Kfarce has reclassified premiums paid for
Company-owned life insurance from operating activities to investing acti-
ities in the sccompanying consolidated statements of cash flows for the

-years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005, to conform to the current

year presentation. -

. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

Effective December 31, 2008, Kforce implemented a Supptemental
Executive Retirement Plan (the "SERP] for the benefit of certain named

. executive officers. The primary goals of the SERP are to provide a salary
continuation plan at retirement, create an additional wealth accumula-

tion opportunity, and restore lost qualified pension benefits due to gov-
ernment limitations. The SERP is a nongualified benefit ptan, and does
not include elective deferrals of covered executive officers’ salaries. The
SERP is funded entirely by Kforce, and benefits are t.axable to the exec-

* utive officer upon receipt and deductible for Kforce when paid. Benefits

payable under the SERP are targeted at 45% of the covered executive
officer's average salary and target bonus from the three years where

the executive earned the highest salary and target bonus during the
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last ten years of employment. Benefits under the SERP are normally
paid for the life of the covered executive officer, but may be commuted
to a lump sum orto 5. 10 or 15 years, as elected by the covered exec-
" utive officer. Interest continues to be credited on the unpaid account
balance, if the covered executive officer does not commute the benefits.
Normal retirement age under the SERP is defined as age 635 however,
early retirement with & lump sum payment at 62, or sconer based on
a minimum of 10 years of service, is permitted with no discounts on the.
* age B5 benefit amount. Early retirement under the SERP is defined as
age 55 with at least 10 years of service, SERP benefits vest hased

upan a graded vesting schedule.
\

SERP Dbligation ‘ ‘ o
The SERP obligation as of the beginning and end of the year and the
pension expense recorded by Kforce for the SERP for the year ended

December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost = -
Plan amendment
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Benefits paid

-

B
4
$4

Benefit obligation at end of year

None of the above benefit obligation was funded as of December 31
2006. : .
Assumptions )

Vveighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic
benefit cost for years ended December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Discount rate ) 7 : 5.75%
Expected longterm rate of return on plan assets —[a)
2.00%

Average assumed rate of compensation increase
. ’

(a)Due to the SERP being unfunded at December 31, 2006, Kforce has not
determined the expected Il:lﬁg—t.er‘m rate of return on plan assets. Once
funded, Kforce will determine the long-term rate of return on plan assets by
determining the composition of the asset portfolio, the historical lang-term
investment performance and current market canditions.

The discount rate used té determine benefit obligations is based on
the interest rate for tong-term high-quality corporate bonds using yields
for maturities that are in line with the duration of our pension fiabilities.
The discount rate will be adjusted annually in order to reflect the currant
level of interest rates at the measurement date. '
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Contributions

Kforce was mot required to fund the plan during the year ended
_ Decemnber 31, 2006. Kforce anticipates making contributions in 2007
of approximately $1.7 million, ) ‘
Estimated Future Benefit Payments
Benefit payments by the SERP, which reflect expected future service
as appropriate; are expected to be paid as follows:

Pension Benefits

-2007 . ; - 6
2008 ’
. 2008
2010
2011
2012-2016
Thereafter

. 10. STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS

in 1994, Kforce established the Emgployee Incentive Stock Option Plan
that allows the issuance of Incentive Stock Options. The Employee Incer-
tive Stock Option Plan was subseguently amended in 1996 to allow for
the issuance of Nongualified Stock Options, Stock Appreciation Rights
and Restricted Stock. The number of shares of common stock that may
be issued under the plan ‘was increased from 8,000 at inception to
12,000 in 2001. The Employeé Incentive Stock Option Plan expired in
March aof 2005, ) :

During 1995, Kforce established.the NonEmployee Oirector Stock
Option Plan, which authorized the issuance to non-employee directors
of options to pur‘chése common stock. The maximum number of shares
of tommon stock that can be issued under this plan is 400. The Non-

\Emp!nyee Directar Stock Option Plan expired in October of 2005."

On June 20, 2008, at the annual meeting of the shareholders of
Kforce, the shareholders approved the Stock Incentive Plan. The Stock -
Incentive Ptan was previously admptezcir by the board of directors on
April 28, 2008, subject to the approval of the shareholders of Kforce.
The aggregate number of shares of common stock that may be sub-
ject to awards under the Stock \ncentive Plan, subject to adjustment
upan a cHange in capitalization, is 3,000. The Stock Incentive Plan ter-
minates on April 28, 2016. Vesting of equity instruments issued under
the Stock Incentive Plan is determined on a grant by grant basis.




'

.

A summary of Kiorce's smck optlon and restricted stock activity for the years ended December 31, 2004 through December 31, 2006 is
- as follows: : ' g

) MNon- Weighted Weighted Total
. \ Employee Employee’ Average Average Intrinsic
‘ Incentive Director Stock Exercise  Fair Value Value of
. Stock Option  Stock Option Incentive Price Per of Options Options
Plan Plan Plan Total Share Granted Exercised
Outstsnding as of December 31, 2003 6.1689 319 - 6.488 $ 805 P
Granted o -1605 — 1605 819 $ 478
Exercised . 11248) -~ [124B) 494 $ 66847
Forfeitsd* (67) ~ (67) 8.80
Outstanding as of December 3’]: 2004 . 6,461 318 - . 6,780 863
, Granted 3390 - 390 1100 4.93
Exercised - (420) — (420) 510 2.282
Forfeited - A (257) - (257) 1097
Outstanding as of December‘ 3, EODS - 6174 319 - 5,493 8.85
Granted - — 60" 60 12.20 8.06
_ Exercised E (1,862) (176) — (2,038) 5.11 18,234
© Forfeited (143) - — (143) 11.42 b
Outstanding as of December 31, 2006 4,169 ' 143 60 4,372  .10.55 ‘
Expecneﬂ to vest at December 31, 2006 — — 60 60
4,168 143 — 4,312 ' 10.53 : K

Exercisable at December 31, 2006

On September 9, 2004, the Compensation Committee of the Board
of Directors Df Kforce accelerated stock options for all current employ-
ees that would otherwise have been unvested on January 1, 2005.
Options to purchase a total of B56 shares of Kforee's common stock
were accelerated. These options were held by fifteen .employees,
including options to purchase an aggregate-of 748 shares of Kfarce's
common stock held by six Executive Officers.

The valuation of options granted during 2006 was based upon a Lat-
tice model utilizing the following assumptions; dividend yield of 0.0%,
risk-free rates of 4.9% to 5.0% for options gra\nr,ed, weighted average

-

.

expected option terms ranging from 3.0 to 6.9 years, and volatility fac-
tors ranging from 71% to 74%. The dividend yield is based upon Kforce
not histarically paying dividends on its common stock and the risk free
rate is based upon treasury strips with similar terms. Weighted aver-

age exercise terms are based upon historical exercise behavior for-

Kforce options and volatility factors used are based upon historical
volatility of Kforce stock.

Options expire at the end of ten years from the date of grant ‘Kforce
issues new shares upon exercise of options,

ya \
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The following table summarizes information about employee and director stock options:

ot
N

’

Dpduné Qutstanding

Weighted .
- . Awerage Weighted o
'-\ ) ‘ Remaining Average Total
\ Number Outstanding at Contractual Exercise Intrinsic
Range of Exercise Prices December 31, 2008 (Shares) Life (Years) Price [$) Value
$ 0DDO-% 3150 21 38 g 241 s 207
$ 3151-% 6.300 780 48 492 5,729
$ 5.301—% 9.450 h | 1.343 42 BO7 5,508
§ 8.451-%12.600 h 966 77 11.05 1,097
$12.601-$15.750 , 962 © 29 14.34 o=
$15.751-$18.900 2 o9 18086 ~
$18.901—$22.050 . 1 0B 2063 -
$22.051-%$25.200 209 11 22.38 —
$25.201-$28.350 78 13 2781 -
' 4372 46 10.55 $12,541
. Dptions Exercisable
‘ - ’ ‘ Weighted ‘ \ |
Average Weighted
- , Remaining Average Total
( Number Exercisable at Contractual Exercise Intrinsic
Range of Exercise Prices December 31, 2006 (Shares) . Life (Years) Price (%) ~Value
% 0000-% 3180 . ;o 21 . :3‘.8 $ 24 % 207‘
$ 3151—-% 6.300 . . 790 49 492 5729
% 6.301—% 9.450 1343 42 807 5.508
$ 9.451-$12.600 . SDE < 77 1087 1,084
$12.601-$15.750 aB2 29 14.34 -
$15.751—-%$18.8900 - 2 09 1806 | -
. $18.801-$22.050 - A , / 1 0B 2063 ' -
$p2.051-$25.200 ) . 209 ' 11 20.38 -
$25.201—-%$2B8.350 78 1.3 2781 =
’ ' > - 4312 4.6 ‘ 10.53 $12,528
\ ~ i '
Al
. !
: Ny
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As of December 31, 2008, the total cempensation cost related to
nanvested options nat yet recognized was $363. The weighted average
permd over which this cost is expected to be recognized is 2.3 years.

The fuﬂuwung restricted stock grants are inctuded in the Employee
Incentive Stock Option Plan in the above table deaalhng grants, exercises
and forfeitures.

" In 20001, Kforce granted approximately 194 shares of stock that was

restricted as to sale, to certaln members of management not including:

the Chlef Executive Officer, in lieu of a cash bonus.

In January 2002, Kiorce nssued 223 shares of restricted stock'ta
certain members of senior management and other employees in
exchange for voluntarily reducing their 2002 salary and cash bonus
patential. Thesé shares vested over a five—year' period with an acceler-

" ation clause if certain Kforce comimon stock price thresholds were met.

During 2003 and 2002, $221 and $212, respectively, was charged to
compensation expense for the strelght Hine amortization of vesting over
the five-year period. On January 5, 2004, Kforce commaon stock clased
at a price levet that fully satisfied the acceleration clause for the 2002
shares and all of such rest.ric\ted stock thereby vested. Because Kfarce

had been amortizing the value of such restricted st.nck on a straightdine .
. basrs over the five-year period, and the stock prme threshold had not

beén met on or prior to December 31, 2003, Kforce was required to
record the unamortized balance of $673 as compensation EXPENSE in

1 'the period when the.stock price threshold was achieved, which was the

first quarter of 2004,

In Febru\ar'y 2003, Kforce granted 192 shareskuf restricted stock to
certain members of senior management as a component of compen-
‘sation. The shares which were originally scheduled to vest in February
of 2005, were accelerated by Kforce on November 80 2004. During
2003 and 2004, Kforce recogmzed $136 and $163, respectively, of
compensation expense for the straightine amortization of the vesting
over two years. Kforce recognized an additional $27 of expense in
2004 due to the acceleration, v

' i 0 . r

During the first and fourth quarters of 2004, Kforce granted 88 and

223 shares, respectively, of restricted stock to certain members of sen- .

ior management. The shares fully vested at the end of the following two-
year periods. Upon issuance of the restricted stock shares, unearned

compensation of $819 and $2,444, respectively, which is equivalent to ¢

the market value at the date of the grant, was charged to stockhotders’

-+
equity. Unearned compensation of $1,034 was reclassified to additional

paid-in capital on January 1, 2008, in accordance with the modified
pr‘uspectlve method of transition prescribed by SFAS 123R. Flestrlcbed

stock compensation of $1,094 and $1.665 was included in cnmpensa— .

tion expense for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. A tax benefit of $438 and $666 sttributable to restricted
stock compensation was recognized in incarne during the years ended

Decermber 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively. During 20086, Kforce -
repurchased 195 shares of restricted stock that were fully vested totak” ;

ing $2,445. In addition. during 2006 Kforce repurchased 190 shares
of common stock from employee\s to satisfy minimum payroll tax with-
holding requirements related to vesting of nongualified stock options or’
exercises of incentive stock options totating $2,928.

The value of time-based restricted stock is determined by its intrinsic
value (as if the underlying shares were vested and issued) on the grant
date. The following table surmmarizes Kforce's time-based nonvested
share activity for the year ended December 31, 2008: |,

/
Weighted
Average
Grant D‘abe
Nonvested Shares [Time Based) Shares Fair Value
Nonvested as of December 31, 2005 281 $ 1052
Granted -, —_
Vested 281 10.52
Forfeited _— —_—
/.Nonvested as of December 31, 2006 — i -

11. SEVERANCE COSTS

In 2005, Kforce incurred and paid compensatian expense of $1.106,
for severance costs upon the termination of a narmed officer. These
costs are a component of SG&A in the Consolidated Statement of
Operations and Comprehensive Income.
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12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES A

Lease Commitments

Kforce leases space and Uper‘aung assets under operating and capital leases expiring at various dates, with some leases cancelable upon 30

to 90 days notice. The leases require payment of tases, insurance and maintenance costs in addition to rental payments. .
Future minimum lease payment;s inclusive of accelerat.ed lease payments [Note 8), under non-cancelable capital and operating Ieases are surm-

marized as follows:

2008

2007 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter
Capital Leases
Present values of payments $ 2,596 $1.383 $ 477 $ 144 $ 80 5 —
Interest ' i 224 120 38 13 ' 3 -
Capital Lease Payments § 2,820 $1,503 & 515 $ 157 $ 83 $ s
Operating Leases ' i .
Facilities $ 9534 $7.021 $4,452 $3,370 $3.144 $14,315
Egquipment P 415 23? 108 - 87 ‘ 21 , -
Furniture 72 71 60 e - o=, -
_Total Operating Leases $10.021 $7.31 34618 $3,459 $3.165 $14,315
Total Leases ) $12.841 $8,834 $5,133 $3616° $3,248 $14,315

Kforce acquired $2,736 and $3,588 of fumniture and equipment under
capital teases in 2006 and 2005, respectively. Capital lease payments
made in 2006 totaled $2,738, inclusive of imputed interest of $394.
Interest on capital leases |s calculated using an interest rate of 9%.

Rental expense under aperating leases was $10.688. $10,758, and
$13.195 for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

On September 14, 2001, Kforce executed an agreement for Iease of
its new headquarters and consalidation of its Tampa operations. Kforce
has classified the lease as an operating lease. Significant terms
included the prepayrnent of rent in the amount of $2,200. The prepay-
ment is being amaortized aver the 15 year term of the lease. Kforce is
required to make minimum annual lease payments escalating fram
approximately $1.929 to $2.949, which are included in the above
future minimum lease payments. $2,596 and $2,084, respectively.
related to the present value of future minimum lease payments on cap-
ital leases. are included in ather current debt and long-term debt-other
in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31,
20085 and 2006.

Other Financing Commitments

Kforce entered into financing agreements related to the purchase of
capitatized software valued at $1.798 and $893 during the yéars
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and future pay-
ments undér the agreements are $780, inclusive of interest of $1 for
the year ended December 31, 2007. Payments under the agreements
totaled $995 inclusive of $9 of interest in 2006, $771 related to the
present value of future payments under these agreements, is included
in other current debt in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet
as of December 31, 2006,

-
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Letters of Credit

Kforce provides lewers of credit to certain vendors in lieu of cash
deposits. Kforce currently has letters'of credit outstanding for workers
compensation and property insurance tataling $4,387 and for facility
lease deposits totaling approximately $1.890.

.

In the ordinary course of its business, Kforce is, from time to time,
threatened with ar named as a defendant in various lawsuits, including
discrimination, harassment and ather simitar allegations. Kforce main-
tains insurance in such amounts and with such coverage and deductibles
as management believes is reasonable. The principal risks that Kforce
insures against are workers’ compensatian, personal injury. badily injury,
property damage, professional malpractice, errors and omissions, -
employment practices IiaBiIity and fidelity losses. Kforce is not aware of
any litigation that would reasonably be expected to have @ material
adverse effect on its results of operations or financial condition.
Employment-Agreements ’

Kforce has entered into employment agreemants with certain exec-
utive officers and managers that provide for minimurm compensation,
salary and continuation of certain benefits for & six-month o three-year
period under certain circumstances. The agreements also provide for a
payment of one to three tmes their annual salary and one half to threg
times their average annual bonus if a change in control {as defined by
the agreements) of Kforce occurs and include a covenant against com
petition with Kforce that extends for one year after termination for any
resson. Kforce's liability at December 31, 2006, would have been
approximately $27.742 in the event of a change in control or $15,652
if all of t'.he employees under contract were to be terminated by Kforce
wmhout good cause (as defined) under these contracts.

- ~
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13. SEGMENT ANALYSIS

Kforce reports segment information in accordance with SFAS 131

“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related information.”
SFAS 137 requires a —management approach in determining reportable
- segments of an organization, The management approach designates
the internal organization that is used by management far making oper-
ation decisions and addressing performance as the source of deter-
mining Kforce's reportable segments. Kforce's internal reporting
follows its four functional service offerings: Technology, Finance and
Accounting, Health and Life Sciences and Government. Kforce also
reparts Flexiblg bilings and Search fer separately by segment. Kforce

added the Government segment during 2006 as a result of the deci-
sion of Kforce management to separately analyze the combined results
of operations of the acquired PCCI and Bradson prime Federat govern-
ment contracting business, along with Kfarce's existing segments, for

the purpose of making decisions as to how resources will be al!ocated

to Kforce's various lines of business.

Historically, and through December 31, 2006, Kforce has generated
only sales and gross profit information on a functional basis. As such,
asset information by segment is nat disclosed. Substantially all operations
and longived assets are located in the U.S.

Infermation concerning operations in these segments of business is as follows:

&
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Finance and  Health and Life .
Technology Accounting Sciences Government Total

2006 h
Net service revenues

Flexible billings $430,731 $208,815 $195,162 $32,877 $867,585

Search.fees 25,638 40,688 4,537 — 70,863

Total revenue $456,369 $249,503 $199,699 $32,877 $938,448
- Gross profit = $144,753 $108,208 % 62,617 $10,521 $326_,099
2005 - .

- Net service revenues 7 y
Flexible bilings $ 352,743 ' $ 211873 $ 182,775 - $ 747391
Search fees 18037 31834 5,003 -— 54,874
Total revenue % 370,780 $ 243,707 $ 187778 — $ BOR2.265
Gross profit ‘$ 109856 ' $ 93310 $ 56823 - $ 259,989

2004 ) '

Net service revenues !
Flexible billings $ 294,598 $169.411 $ 156071 - $ 620,080
Search fees 11,397 + 26,058 3.916 — 41,371 °
Total revenue - $ 3059985 $195,469 $ 159,987 — % 661451
Gross profit § B4513 $ 73263 $ 4108 - % 203,884

by
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14. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

- )
'

Quarter Ended

. ~ March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
2006 : '
Net service revenues * $222,298 $234,399 . $238,700 $243,051
Gross profit 74,002 80,927 85,401 85,769
Net income 6,057 . 8,365 8,842 9,255
Net earnings per shere-basic $0.15 $0.21 $0.22 $0.23.
Net earnings per share—diluted $0.15 $0.20 $0.21 $0.22
2005 i g :
Net service revenues $ 192,800 % \198.470 $ 207293 $ 203802
Gross profit y 60028 64.064 ', 588389 67,508
Net income 3079 5669 6713 6.860
et earnings per share-hasic . $0.08 $0.15 8017 $0.18
Net earnings per share—diluted i $0.08 $014 $017 . 3017

~

* During the quarter ended December 31, 2006, KForce re

based upon KForce receiving IRS approval of a tax method change.

15. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Supplemental cash flow information is as follows:

‘ A
cognized a tax benefit totaling $883 related to the reversal of a valuation allowance

2004

' 2006
Cash paid (received) during the period for: )
Income taxes paid (received) ‘ $ 612 g (29 $ (399)
Interest, net ) 3,689 1.888 1844
Non-Cash Transaction Information:
Cash flow hetlge (expense) benefit, net of taxes ; T (37) 188
Tax benefit from disqualifying dispositions of
stock options and restricted stock 5,700 341 611
Commoan Stock‘Transact.ions: - ’ » '
Employee stock purchase plan ' 1.597 961 T 7a
Issuance of stock in an acquisition 5,202 18,324 51,388
Restricted stock issued or assigned in fieu of compensation, |
net of forfeitures — , - 3143
Software acquired under financing agreement — 1,789 893
Equipment acquired under capital lease 2,736 3,589 2.247
Non-cash gain on sale of Board Network l — 74 S
.. Cash used in connection with acquisitians, net: '

" Transacticn costs ' $127.,406 $ 277 $12,441
Escrow . s ' 10,000 k .- r—
Payment of acquired business bark line of credit — 2467 10,638
Payment of 2003 OnStaff earnout ' — - 4210

' Buyout of future OnStaff earnout ! - — 2,500
Payment of acquired business long-term liability — - ' 1050
Cash received in acquisition . . (906]) — {2.827)
Transaction costs—Hall Kinion tax adjustments = ~ 58 =
Cash overdraft received in acquisition 232 ' 101 —

: $136,732 $ 2903 $28012
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A copy of the Kforee ne.'s Annual Report
on Form 10K {excluding exhibits thereto}
is available to any investor without charge
upon written request to Michae! R.
Blackman, Senior Vice President, Investar
Relations, Kforce Inc., 1001 East Palm
Avenue, Tampa, Rorida 33605, or at

www kforce.com or call Irvestor Relations:

1 (813) 5522927

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of shareholders
will be held on June 19, 2007 at
8:00 am. at Kforce Inc. headquarters
in Tampa, Florida.

WEBSITE INFORMATION
For a comprehensive profile of

Kforece Inc., visit the Firm's website
at wwwkforce.com.
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ARIZONA
Fhoenix
Scottsdate

CALIFORNIA
Carlsbad
Encino
Gardena
Irvine

Los Angeles
Ontario
Sacramento
San Diego
San Francisco
San Jose
Walnut Creek
Westlake Village

COLORADD
Greenwood Village [Denver)

CONNECTICUT
East Hartford
Shelton

Stamford

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
Washington

FLORIDA

Ft. Lauderdale
Miarmi
Orlando
Tampa

GEORGIA
Atlanta

KFORCE LOCATIONS

ILLINOIS
Chicago
Westchester

INDIANA

Indianapolis

KANSAS
Overtand Park [Kansas City)

KENTUCKY

Louisville

MARYLAND
Baltimore
Gaithersburg

MASSACHUSETTS
Baoston

Burlington
Westborough

MICHIGAN
Grand Rapids
Southfield {Detroit)

MINNESOTA
Bloomington (Minneapalis)

MISSOURI
St. Louis

NEW JERSEY
Iselin

Paramus
Parsippany

NEW YORK
New York
White Plains

KFORCE
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Kfarce—77 offices to serve you.

OHIO

Blue Ash

Cincinnati

Columbus

Dayton

Independence (Cleveland]
Miamisburg

OREGON
Partiand

PENNSYLVANIA
King of Prussia
Philadelphia
Pittsburgh

RHODE ISLAND

Providence

TEXAS
Austin
Dallas

Fort Worth
Houston
San Antonio

UTAH
Salt Lake City

VIRGINIA
Arlington
Fairfax
Reston

WASHINGTON
Bellevue

WISCONSIN
Madison
Milwaukee

END

To find the location nearest you, visit our Website at www.kforce.com ar call 1 [800)] 395-5575.
Corporate Headguarters: 1001 East Palm Avenue, Tampa, Florida 33605

1 (813) 552-5000
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